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Lieutenant
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Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
2318 Atascocita Road
Humble, TX 77396

Final Report - Intercontinental Terminals Company Tank Farm Fire

ABSTRACT:

An initial report was written and submitted by Investigator Dennis Lee (95F24), but due to the size and scope of the
incident a report detailing what occurred after Sunday March 17, 2019 would need to be written by the Lead
Investigator who was assigned to complete the investigation.  That task fell to Investigator Jim Hargraves, Jr. (95F33)
who with the assistance of Special Agent Eric Evers with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms, and Explosives
conducted an investigation, determining the origin and cause of the fire.  Investigator Hargraves was also assisted by
Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez and Investigator John Ledford in conducting interviews of the employees of ITC.  Through
those interviews it was determined that the pump for Tank 80-8 had been replaced in December of 2018.  Documents
were requested through subpoenas and thorough the examination of those documents it was determined that a large leak
occurred 30 minutes prior to the fire, thus releasing a large amount of product.  Subsequent to the release there was a
mechanical failure of equipment.  The hypothesis at this point of the investigation was that the failure of equipment and
the product release caused the fire that occurred on March 17, 2019.  The hypothesis was confirmed once investigators
were allowed to enter the "hot zone" on April 9, 2019.  The manifold area of tank 80-8 was photographed in place and
great care was taken to not disturb any of the components of the manifold, but to photograph them in place.  This task
took four insertions to the hot zone with Investigator Hargraves and Special Agent Evers conducting two insertions. 
The interviews that were conducted are in the interview section of this document and the Supplements that were written
are in the Supplements tab of this document.

This report will detail those events.  It should be noted that the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office and Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives worked very closely in completing the work products needed to make this
final report possible.

ASSIGNMENT:

On Sunday, March 17, 2019 at approximately 10:33 hours, a fire occurred at petrochemical facility commonly known as
Intercontinental Terminals Company.  The address provided is 1943 Independence Parkway, which is in La Porte,
unincorporated Harris County, Texas.  A secondary address for the facility is 2621 Tidal Road, which 
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is in Deer Park, unincorporated Harris County, Texas.  The chemicals involved along with the difficulty in
extinguishing the fire prevented entry into the fire scene for approximately one week.  Another obstacle to the
investigation of the fire was the fact that the scene had to be deemed safe and that the chemicals involved had to be
sufficiently remediated so that an investigation could occur.

On Wednesday, March 20, 2019 at approximately 03:03 hours, the fire was extinguished.  This was done with the
assistance of personnel from ITC, CIMA, and other industrial fire companies that had been requested to assist with
firefighting operations.  It should be noted that due to the volatile nature of the chemicals involved, entry into the tank
farm was delayed until the area was deemed safe by safety officials.

The Houston Ship Channel is a large, commercial waterway used for interstate and international transportation of
goods.  The waterway is a vital artery for these goods, especially the oil and gas industry.  Any interruption in
transportation of goods could cause significant financial impact.

Special Agent Eric Evers with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) assisted the Harris
County Fire Marshal`s Office with the origin and cause investigation of the fire.  Special Agent Evers authored the
origin and cause section of this report with input from participating HCFMO Investigators. 

SCENE DESCRIPTION:

The tank farm where the fire occurred is known throughout the company as the Second 80`s.  This is because the tanks
located within the tank farm are 80,000 barrel tanks.  They are approximately 120` tall and 40` in diameter.  The tanks
are of welded construction and have a wall thickness of approximately 1-1/2".  The tank farm itself is approximately
328,000 square feet with piping and equipment throughout.  The Second 80`s contained 15 tanks in a 3 x 5 construction. 
Tank 80-8 the focus of this investigation was in the middle of the tank farm.

The Legal Description of the property is as follows: TRS 4F-2 & 4G-1 (IMPS ONLY) (LAND*0440990010032)
(POLLUTION CONTROL) ABST 646 G ROSS.  The complex is located within the Houston Ship Channel Industrial
Complex and is located on Independence Parkway which runs in a north to south direction.  Independence Parkway is a
concrete two-way road surface in good condition.

The weather conditions for the day of the fire was reported at Ellington Field on March 17, 2019 at approximately 09:53
hours is as follows was that the air temperature was 55ºF, the humidity was 38%, the winds were out of the East North
East at 8 MPH, and the skies were mostly cloudy.

The weather conditions for the day that the fire was extinguished was reported at Ellington Field on March 20, 2019 at
approximately 02:50 hours is as follows was that the air temperature was 52ºF, the humidity was 82%, the winds were
Calm at 0 MPH, and the skies were fair.

Page 84

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 11/18/2019 14:00:00, Monday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:SINGLETON, J.  (F09130)Supervisor: 11/18/2019 17:12:34, Monday

The weather conditions for the day of the examination was reported at Ellington Field on April 9, 2019 at approximately
09:50 hours, is as follows was that the air temperature was 75 ºF, the humidity was 61%, the winds were out of the West
at 9 MPH, and the skies were fair.

SCENE SAFETY / AIR MONITORING:

Proper personnel protective equipment was used by investigators during the fire scene examination including Class B
HAZMAT suits, multi-gas detectors, Rubber boots and rubber gloves with nitrile inner gloves. 

Air Quality readings were provided by on site monitoring and the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office HAZMAT team. 
Constant monitoring of the scene was conducted and once it was determined that entry into the hot zone could be made,
HAZMAT personnel were attached to the investigative team as well as third party air monitoring.  Due to the chemicals
present, it was determined that Class B HAZMAT suits along with canister type air filters with Full Face masks would
be utilized while operating in the hot zone.

FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEMS/ALARMS:

Fire Sprinkler System - No automatic system present - The tank farm did have large diameter fire monitors present to
provide firefighting capabilities.  A low pressure malfunction with the fire pump prevented it from being utilized to
assist in controlling the fire during the incipient stage.

Fire Alarm System - No automatic fire alarm system was present.  Witnesses reported a radio system was used.  Once
the fire was observed, notifications for the fire team to respond were made and employees responded to their assigned
stations.  The tanks are monitored via SCADA in the Control Room, and have notifications programmed by the
operators to alert if any abnormalities are detected.

ELECTRICAL AND NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS:

Location of Power Meter - Power is supplied to the tank farm via a transformer bank located near the rail car and truck
manifold.  The power is supplied by a 7kV transformer and all wiring is run underground in conduit and all connections
are made up in Class 1 vapor and dust explosion proof junction boxes.  Circuit breakers are variable in nature and are
rated at 1200 amps. The power supplied is three phase and is used to power large, high horsepower electrical motors
used to drive the pumps located on the manifolds of the tanks.

Location of Gas Meter - The gas shut off for each tank is located at the tank manifold.  There are intakes at the docks to
allow product to be moved from the ship dock to the tanks.  There are also intakes at the truck manifold and rail car
yard manifold that allow product to be moved from tank trailers and rail cars to the tank farm as well.  
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The levels for the tanks are monitored in a control room and the levels are recorded using SCADA data. Data provided
to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office from a subpoena served to ITC shows that product was being released from
tank 80-8 for approximately 30 minutes.  Approximately 9,000 gallons or 220 Barrels of Butane enriched Naphtha
would have been released during this time period. A barrel according to the American Petroleum Institute is
approximately 42 U.S. gallons for reference.

ORIGIN AND CAUSE OF THE FIRE:

Investigator Hargraves took over as Lead Investigator on Tuesday, March 26, 2019 and conducted multiple on scene
interviews as well as on site and off site inspections.  Investigators with the HCFMO and ATF were present for the fire
scene examination that occurred on April 9, 2019.  Investigators agree, that based on the interviews conducted, the data
collected, scene examination and the site visits the fire is accidental in nature.  The ATF case number is
782035-19-0029.  See the comprehensive, co-authored ATF/HCFMO Origin and Cause Determination report for further
details.

Injuries or Fatalities:
Two medics with Clear Lake Medical Corps were evaluated at Houston Methodist St. John`s hospital.  Lt. Weido and
Morgan were evaluated after being exposed possibly to Benzene.  This occurred on Wednesday, March 20, 2019.  A
supplement was completed by Investigator S. Keesler.

Scene Documentation:
Images were captured at various times during the scene.  Digital cameras, drones, and video recorders were utilized to
capture the scene and provide a true representation of the scene as scene on the many dates mentioned above in the
report.  The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the device and transferred to the Harris County
Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

Evidence:
All items from the manifold were left in place and were not disturbed during the scene examination that occurred on
April 9, 2019.  All of the items were later transported from the scene to a business called Stress Engineering Services,
Inc. and is located at 42403 Old Houston Highway in Waller, Waller County, Texas.  The items were photographed by
Investigator Hargraves and are a true representation of the scene as observed on September 10, 2019.  The photos were
saved to an internal memory card and later transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital
Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

Canine Usage:
See their supplement for further information.

INTERVIEWS:

Page 86

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 11/18/2019 14:00:00, Monday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:SINGLETON, J.  (F09130)Supervisor: 11/18/2019 17:12:34, Monday

Numerous interviews were conducted by Investigators with the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office.  They were
overseen by Lieutenant G. Lopez and were audio recorded and supplements were completed for each interview that
occurred. Interviews were conducted starting on March 18, 2019 and continued until the scene was released by
HCFMO.  A site visit was conducted at Stress Engineering Services, Inc. on September 10, 2019 to photograph parts
belonging to the manifold of Tank 80-8.  All of the interviews conducted along with site visits and the scene
examination were completed as supplements and uploaded to the reporting system of the Harris County Fire Marshal`s
Office.

NARRATIVE:

Investigators explored the hypothesis that the fire was the result of a mechanical failure near the pump, seal pot and
coolant assembly within the manifold of Tank 80-8, thus causing a leak and subsequent ignition of the fire.  The reason
for the belief for a mechanical failure was that the data collected from the SCADA system showed a product release for
approximately 30 minutes prior to the fire.  Employees were interviewed and were asked about their knowledge of any
issues in and around the tank farm on the day of the fire.  Some of the employees remembered that shortly before seeing
the smoke cloud there was a noise like "rail cars coupling".  This would be a sound familiar to most of the employees as
there is a railyard within their property.  This sound would indicate a moving part that was in motion and then suddenly
stopping that motion.   The instant stopping of the moving part would or is likely to produce friction, heat and sparks
from the metal to metal contact.  This would be the primary ignition source and the sequence would be that the leaking
vapor product from the tank was ignited by the failure of the equipment from suddenly coming to a stop.  With the
hypothesis of mechanical failure formed, the data had to be tested and unfortunately that would have to wait until the
hot zone was deemed safe to enter.  Investigators continued to explore the mechanical failure hypothesis through the
interview of process control operators and determine the validity of the processes involved in monitoring, repairing and
replacement of field products.  That led investigators to speak to the process operators, control room manager and repair
personnel.  This included millwrights, electricians, as well as operators, and anyone that was responsible for the
equipment. 

The site was examined on April 9, 2019 and was conducted with representatives from ITC, Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Investigations, Harris County Fire Marshal`s HAZMAT, and Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms,
and Explosives along with Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Safety.  Upon taking pictures, it was observed by
myself and Special Agent Evers what appeared to be studs laying in the pump housing.  It appeared to be three of the
four studs that would be used to hold the seal face to the flange using nuts and washers.  The nuts were not located as
there was a blanket of firefighting foam on the ground surrounding the manifold.  The nuts could also have been mixed
in to the debris that was on the concrete pad of the manifold.  In any case they were not located visually by this entry
team.  It was also observed that the seal pot was dislodged and was sitting at approximately a 45º angle.  It was also
observed that the metal coolant lines that were attached to the seal pot had wrapped around the seal pot.  A final
hypothesis of mechanical failure within the manifold of the tank was 
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agreed upon by Investigators.

MISCELLANEOUS:

A site visit was performed at Stress Engineering Services, Inc., located at 42403 Old Houston Highway, Waller, Texas
77484.  This is where the manifold items were moved from Tank 80-8 to be stored for future testing and examination. I,
Investigator Hargraves took a series of photographs using a Canon EOS Rebel digital camera with an internal flash. The
images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the camera and transferred to the Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.  The photographs were of
items of interest particularly the seal pot flange and the studs that were observed from the site examination of the tank
farm on April 9, 2019.  One stud remained in the flange and two were able to be photographed and one was heavily
damaged and appeared melted.  These photographs along with the examination of parts support the hypothesis of a
mechanical failure within the manifold of Tank 80-8.  An overview picture of the entire plant and the location of the
tank farm and tank of origin has been uploaded as a reference to this supplement.
  

SUMMARY:

The fire that occurred at the Intercontinental Terminals Company on March 17, 2019 was the result of a failure within
the manifold power frame of Tank 80-8.  The failure within the power frame resulted in an uncontained release of
Naphtha enriched with Butane.  Foul play and malicious intent along with other unintentional causes were ruled out by
investigators. Investigators were unable to rule out various other failure scenarios within the seal pot and coolant
assembly, along with failures involving the electric motor of the power frame or the potential ignition of the free
flowing, ungrounded ignitable liquid.  Based upon the interviews of the employees, witnesses and the field examination
the nature of this fire is classified as Accidental, per the description in NFPA 921.

--EOR--
JOH 
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1
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI DICKERSON, JEREMY 47 W M
   -   -
   -   -

1)

Mobile #:

2
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI FEHL, DANIEL TYLER 27 W M

   -   -

2)

Mobile #:    -   -

3
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI CAPETILLO, DAVID 32 W M

   -   -

3)

Mobile #:    -   -

4
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI WILKE, CHRISTOPHER RYAN 30 W M
   -   -
281-478-7281Deer Park Fire Department, 2211 East X St. Deer Park Tx 77536

4)

Mobile #:

5
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI PARKER, MICHAEL WILLIAM 49 W M
   -   -
281-478-7281Deer Park Fire Department, 2211 E X St. Deer Park Tx 77536

5)

Mobile #:

6
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

IO MORGAN, GREGORY 54 W M

281-488-3078Clear Laker Emergency Medical, 16920 N Texas Ave Webster Tx

2)

Mobile #:    -   -

7
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

IO WEIDO, FRANK 51 W M

281-488-3078Clear Lake Emergency Medical C, 16920 N Texas Ave Webster Tx

3)

Mobile #:    -   -

8
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI MENGER, JAMES EDWARD SR 68 W M

   -   -

7)

Mobile #:    -   -

9
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI SURGUY, ROBERT E 41 W M
   -   -
   -   -

8)

Mobile #:
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10
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI RICHARDSON, ALICE 57 W F

   -   -

9)

Mobile #:    -   -

11
Address

B:

H:

Empl/Addr

WI GUIDRY, TIMOTHY S 40 W M

   -   -

6)

Mobile #:    -   -
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1 = None    2 = Burned    3 = Counterfeit / Forged     4 = Damaged / Vandalized    5 = Recovered    6 = Seized    7 = Stolen   8 = Unknown

Narr. (cont.)  OCA: 1903-00046
INCIDENT/INVESTIGATION REPORT
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

N A R R A T I V E

Investigators were requested for a fire investigation.

By: JHARGRAVES,  11/20/2019 13:42R_CS2IBR Page 5
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Date / Time Reported

Sun 03/17/2019 12:48
OffenseVictim

HOLLEY, CARL EDWARD FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

REPORTING OFFICER NARRATIVE

ASSIGNMENT:
On Sunday March 17, 2019 at 1241 I, Investigator D. Lee unit 95F24 of the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office was
dispatched by Cypress Creek Emergency Communications Center to an investigation request from Sargent T. Hilton
of the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office regarding an industrial fire.  I arrived on scene at 1410 to find a large
storage tank on fire.   

I determined the scene was un-safe to enter.

Daytime conditions existed on my arrival.

No weather conditions to report at this time.  Weather conditions will be provided once an estimated fire time is
established.

Scene Safety/Air Monitoring:
The scene was unsafe to enter on my arrival.

ORIGIN AND CAUSE OF FIRE:
Pending investigation.

INJURIES OR FATALITIES:
No injuries or fatalities were reported at this time.

SCENE DOCUMENTATION:
I documented the scene with a series of digital photographs using my county-assigned Canon Rebel T3 digital
camera with a built-in flash.  I copied the photographs from the camera`s SD card to the FORAY photo management
system at the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office.

EVIDENCE:
None.

K9 Usage:
None.   
INTERVIEWS:
I was unable to interview anyone on my initial response.  

INSURANCE INFORMATION:
The property is insured through Home First Insurance.

MISCELLANEOUS:
I identified the responsible party as Mr. Carl Holley DOB whose driver`s license number is

and who can be reached at .
 
SUMMARY: 
This is an active investigation.  Currently unable to enter the scene because several tanks are still burning. 

This investigation is on-going.

LEE, D.Reporting Officer: Page 6Printed By: JHARGRAVES,            11/20/2019 13:42
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Date / Time Reported

Sun 03/17/2019 12:48
OffenseVictim

HOLLEY, CARL EDWARD FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

REPORTING OFFICER NARRATIVE

End
DPL
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Incident Report Related Property List

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

Name (Last, First, Middle)

Holley, Carl Edward

Property Description

Notes

1

DOB Age

61 W M
Race Sex

Make Model Caliber

Color Serial No.

NIC # State # Local #Status Date

Value Qty Unit Jurisdiction

OAN

CHEMICALS

$500, 000.00 1.000 Locally

03/17/2019Burned
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Supplement 

March 18, 2019 

Interview with James Menger 

Interview with Robert Surguy 



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LEE, D.  (F09043)Investigator: 03/18/2019 17:00:00, Monday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:SCHOONOVER, S.  (F09121)Supervisor: 03/27/2019 06:04:47, Wednesday

D. Lee unit 95F24 
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office 
Supplemental Report

On Monday March 18, 2019 at 0929 I, Dennis Lee unit 95F24 along with Investigator Lieutenant G. Lopez unit 95F7
and Investigator K. Pulley unit 95F32 of the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office returned to the fire scene to conduct
follow-up information gathering.  Units arrived on scene at 1034.  

The scene was unsafe to enter due to numerous storage tanks still burning. 

I identified and interviewed a witness, Mr. James Menger DOB SSN who stated he works for
Clean Harbors, the neighboring facility.  He stated he saw an approximate 20 foot wide column of smoke near the tank
but could not see the source of the smoke.  He stated CIMA was called and he awaited further instructions.  

I identified the ITC rep as Mr. Robert Surguy DOB L .  He stated everyone is accounted for
and no injuries have been reported.  He stated the fire source appears to be near a valve manifold.  He stated at this time,
there are five tanks involved, that each hold approximately 80,000 barrels of product. 

He identified two of the products involved as naphtha and xylene.  

I determined through interviews that the person in the immediate vicinity at the time of the fire is Mr. Tim Guidry.  No
other information available on Mr. Guidry. 

Mr. Guidry is scheduled to return to work Tuesday, March 19 at 1600.  

No other information available at this time.  

The investigation continues.

End
DPL
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Interview with Timothy Guidry 
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LEE, D.  (F09043)Investigator: 03/19/2019 12:26:00, Tuesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:SCHOONOVER, S.  (F09121)Supervisor: 04/30/2019 06:54:23, Tuesday

D. Lee unit 95F24 
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office 
Supplemental Report

On Tuesday March 19, 2019 at 1226 I, Dennis Lee unit 95F24 along with Investigator Lieutenant G. Lopez unit 95F7 of
the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office drove to 1030 Ethyl Corp Road in unincorporated Harris County Texas to
conduct follow-up information gathering.  Units arrived on scene at 1300.  

I identified and interviewed a witness, Mr. Timothy Guidry DOB DL  who stated he is employed
by International Terminals Company as a Supervisor.

Mr. Guidry stated he was in the plant yard performing a hydro-test on tank 80-18 which has been identified as being
approximately 600 feet south of tank # 80-8.  

He stated he saw flames in the area between tanks 80-8 and 80-11. He stated he saw flames extending to near the top of
the tank. He stated he then went to the nearest fire suppression monitor and tried to put water on the fire.  He stated that
due to the angle of the monitor in relation to tank 18-8, he could not get a direct shot and instead, had to spray tank
18-11 and bounce water back to 18-8.  

He stated the motor on tank 80-8 was probably running at the time and that the pump on 80-11 should not have been
running.

He stated tank 80-8 contained Naphtha and that there was approximately 40 to 41 feet of product in the tank.  He stated
tank 80-11 contained Lubrizol, which he identified as a form of mineral oil.

End
DPL
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Interview with Jeremy Dickerson 
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/19/2019 19:20:00, Tuesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/26/2019 15:47:34, Tuesday

On March 19, 2019 at about 19:20 hours I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, interviewed Jeremy Dickerson in my county
vehicle in regards to this incident.  Jeremy stated that he was working in the BP and base oil position and went to the
office control room when he heard over the Tim on the radio stated that there was a fire.  He went to the fire house to
open all doors and help in putting water on the tanks.  He went to the monitor that was in front of Tank 9 and saw the
fire between Tank 9 and Tank 8.  He was not able to put water on Tank 8 and banked it off of Tank 9 and Tank 11.  He
also put water on other tanks to cool them down.  Jeremy stated that he heard a roar and saw fire coming from the
manifold of Tank 9.  He described how the naptha and butane are placed in the tanks, especially Tank 8.  He also stated
that the contents were to be transferred out and then filled with new product. The interview was recorded via audio and
will be attached to this supplement.  Recorded statement will be uploaded to Foray undert his cause number due to the
file is to large to be attached to this supplement.  End of supplement…………..
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/20/2019 16:00:00, Wednesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/25/2019 19:38:15, Monday

On March 20, 2019 I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, was at Trans Star due to a meeting and Chief Rodney Reed with
HCFMO, stated that Chris Collier, with SETRAC, informed him that Chief Petrilla, Fort Bend County EMS, informed
him (Chris) that personnel in the rehab had stated something about a generator on fire that had spread to the tank.  I
obtained Chris Collier`s contact number of   

At 17:48 hours, I called Chris Collier and informed him of what Chief Reed had told me.  She stated that firefighters
had stated that a generator that workers were working with had caught on fire.  Also that the firefighters were not
allowed to put it out due to the procedures of the plant.  Chris stated that he will send me an email with Chief Petrilla`s
information.   End of supplement………………
D. Lee 
Unit 95F24 
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office 
Supplemental Report

On Wednesday March 20, 2019 at 1022 I, Dennis Lee unit 95F24 along with Investigator Lieutenant G. Lopez unit
95F7 of the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office drove to 1030 Ethyl Corp Road in unincorporated Harris County Texas
to conduct follow-up information gathering.  Units arrived on scene at 1059.  

Investigators identified and interviewed a witness, Mr. David Joseph (Joe) Capetillo DOB D
who stated he is employed by International Terminals Company as an Area Pumper.  

Mr. Capetillo stated he was making his rounds and that everything appeared to be operation routinely when he heard a
call on the radio that there was a fire and that everyone needed to respond.  Mr. Capetillo stated he got his gear and
went to the North side of the plant on Tidal Road.  He stated he saw fire at or near the manifold on tank 80-8.  He stated
the flame was shooting straight up from the manifold.  He further stated there is a butane injection line on the piping
and that he saw fire coming from the injection line piping.  He stated the injection line and the entire manifold were
engulfed in flame.  

Mr. Capetillo used the monitor located at the north side of the tank yard to spray water in the direction of tank 80-8.  He
stated he could see paint starting to peel on tank 80-11 but stated tank 80-11 was not on fire at the time.
The investigation continues.

End
DPL
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/21/2019 11:11:06, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/25/2019 19:37:30, Monday

On March 21, 2019 at 11:11 hours I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, made contact with Assistant Chief Petrilla at
 .  He spoke to the Deer Park firefighters with the first in engine who showed him pictures of the fire

when they arrived.  According to firefighters, it looked like there was a generator that had caught on fire that was next
to the tank.  From what Chief Petrilla stated, it looked like a small-large welder, but could not tell from the picture.  I
then asked him about not being allowed to put the fire out.  He stated that from what the Deer Park firefighters stated, is
that they were not allowed to go and he stated that he does not know the procedures and would not want to guess.
  
On this same day at 11:59 hours, I made contact with Deer Park Fire Department Assistant Chief Phillip Arroyo at

.  He stated that around 10:30 hours, an engine was being requested from Deer Park to respond to the ITC
fire.  Chief Arroyo responded and was the first on scene with Deer Park.  On his arrival, he gave a size up and
established Command for his department.  He met with ITC Command (Carl Holley) and asked if there was air
monitoring in place and the Chief Holley stated no.  Chief Arroyo then requested HCFMO Hazmat Team to respond. 
On their arrival, according to Chief Arroyo, Hazmat met up with David Wade.  Chief Arroyo stated that Engine 31
responded with five or six firefighters and on their arrival, they staged for about 2 hours before being assigned.  He will
get me the list of names and phone numbers of them.  At 13:00 hours I received the following text from Chief Arroyo:
Greg Bridges ( give him a couple of hours as he`s sleeping due to working nights)+1 
Shane Bridges1 
Clyde Coxie
James Varley
Christian Zubia
Matt Callas
Keith Vasquez 
Tommy Archer 

I called Shane Bridges at 13:50 hours and stated that he and Keith Vasquez made the scene on the First Relief team for
Deer Park Fire Department, this was about 19:30 hours, but not sure of the exact time.  He stated that they were staged
far enough and he was able to take pictures of the fire but that two tanks were in the way.  He stated that there were
multiple tanks on fire.  He stated that he did take pictures and will send them via email.  

 I called Keith Vasquez at 14:14 hours and he confirmed that he was on the First Relief Team with Shane Bridges.  He
stated that they were in staging until released between 02:00 and 03:00 hours Monday morning.  He also stated E31 was
assigned to RIT because the ITC was going to attempt to "make the block", meaning attempt to close the valve.  Due the
valve was not able to be closed due to the fire and the metal of the tanks making noises, E31 was sent back to staging. 
(Recording)

At 14:28 hours, I spoke with Clyde Coxie who was the officer in charge of E31.  She stated that on their arrival, 
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/21/2019 11:11:06, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/25/2019 19:37:30, Monday

they checked in at Staging and were not initially given orders due to other apparatus were being sent in.  They were
eventually sent in with the Valero team for manpower.  They were then assigned as the RIT team to back up the team
that was going to block (turn off) the valve on Tanks 2 and 3.  Due to the fire, waist keep in water, and the tanks making
sounds, the decision was made to not block the tanks and units were ordered back off.  They went back to staging and
were released.  He also stated that he heard that ITC personnel were making a transfer from one tack to another and the
gasket failed.  He stated that he did not hear this from an ITC personnel.  (Recoding)

At 16:33 hours, I received a phone call from Rob Thompson related to follow up in another fire.  I informed him that we
have been busy with the ITC incident and I apologized for not returning his phone call in a timely manner.  The reason
for the phone call is because a neighbor might have suspect information on a case that HCFMO is working.  Mr.
Thompson stated that his brothers John Burdett and Jonathan Burdett work at ITC but did not work the day of the fire. 
Mr. Thompson stated that John informed him that they were they "were pumping that shit out" when the pump caught
on fire.  I asked him for a contact number for John and was hesitant because he does not want to get his brother in
trouble.  (Recording)

At 16:23 I made contact with Jeremy Dickerson and asked if we could meet for a follow up interview and he agreed to
meet at ITC at the new Command site.  At 17:12 hours I arrived at the ITC incident to interview Jeremy Dickerson and
was informed that Incident Command was moved to 2621 Tidal Road.  I arrived at Tidal road at approximately 17:35
hours and I called Jeremy to inform him that I was there.  Jeremy got into my count vehicle and conducted a second
interview.  I asked him to give me a rundown of what he did when he arrived at work on Sunday (refer to recorded
interview).  I asked him about if they had removed the contents of Tank 8 to clean the tank and he stated no.  I then
informed him that he mentioned something like that and he stated no.  I then asked him what is a pig and what is it used
for.  He explained the process and that it is documented on paper.  I asked him if the documentation takes place before
the pig is sent down the line or after.  He stated that it is done after (refer to recorded interview).  After the interview
was completed, I reviewed his original recorded statement in reference to what I thought was the removal of contents
and determined that when the contents were to be transferred out and then filled with new product is what he meant by
removal of contents.  

Recordings will be uploaded into Foray due to files are too large to upload in this supplement
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:KEESLER, S.  (F09124)Investigator: 03/21/2019 17:40:00, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:SCHOONOVER, S.  (F09121)Supervisor: 04/24/2019 12:14:31, Wednesday

On Wednesday March 20, 2019 I was contacted by Lt. Lopez at approximately 16:15 hours in reference two fire fighter
being evaluated from the ITC incident at Houston Methodist ST. Johns Hospital. I responded to the hospital and arrived
at approximately 16:57 hours.

Houston Methodist St Johns Staff advised they had no fire fighter being treated at the hospital. I asked if they had any
first responders being treated from the chemical plant fire.  They advised they had to Clear Lake Medical Corp Medics
being evaluated and were currently in Emergency Room #9. I walked back to room #9 and met with Lt Frank Weido
and Medic Gregory Morgan who were receiving oxygen via a nose canal. They both advised they came in POV after
being released from the scene and returning the Medic Unit.

Lt Weido advised they were deployed with Set Trac task Force and responded in CLEMC Medic 530. I was assigned
Task Leader assigning transport units. No patients were transported during my time as a Team leader. We had shift
briefing this morning at 06:30. All units were staged in staging area south of the incident. At Approximately 08:15 we
had a strong smell of Benzene at the EMS Command Post and Staging Area. At Approximately 08:20 hours we were
advised over the radio that high levels of Benzene in the area south of the incident. At Approximately 08:30 Plant
alarms activated advising to shelter in place. CIMA advised us to evacuate and stage at the Love`s Gas Station. Cy-Fair,
Atascocita, La Porte and Acadian Ambulance was assigned to me and we all evacuated to Love`s. We were in the smell
approximately twenty minutes from the time we first smelled it till we moved out. I will complete a full report for Set
Trac and Chief Hunter with CLEMC once released from hospital. I wanted to come in to be checked due to 

 We are just being evaluated and will be released later this evening. The hospital completed lab 
took X-Rays. 

Medic Gregory Morgan advised he was assigned to CLEMC Medic 530 along with Lt Weido and was with during the
event. When we were coming back I noticed my throat felt irritated and a headache. We got the unit back to the station
and decided to come over here to get checked out. We came over together for precautionary. We got here to the hospital
at approximately 15:27 hours. We have had all the lab work and X-rays done and just waiting for doctor to check by and
be released. I am feeling better after receiving O2.

I left both patient with a business card and asked them to contact if anything changes or were going to be admitted. I
also told them if Chief Hunter has any questions for me to please feel free to contact me.

S. Keesler 95F23
End of Supplement
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/22/2019 13:15:00, Friday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/25/2019 19:38:56, Monday

On March 22, 2019 at 12:43 hours I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, arrived in the area of 2621 Tidal Road.  At the main
curve, there was a road block and I was informed that I was not able to get to the ITC location at 2621 Tidal Road due
to the concrete dike, around the 15 tanks, breached.  The purpose of this follow-up is to conduct an interview on John
Burdett. At 13:11 hours I arrived at Ethyl Road determined that the interview should be conducted with Investigator
Hargraves.  I returned to service.  

End of supplement…………………….
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/22/2019 19:15:00, Friday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/26/2019 11:23:22, Tuesday

On March 22, 2019 about 19:15 hours Assistant Chief James Bolton and I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, arrived at 1030
Ethyl Road, checked in at the front desk, and met with Robert E. Surguy.  He was informed that we had a subpoena to
issue and other paperwork.  He took us inside and we met with PIO Alice Richardson who then took us into a room. 
We informed her that we had a subpoena to issue and a Consent to Search form to be reviewed.  Attorney Matt Kuryla
was the first attorney to make contact with us and I presented him the subpoena and consent to search.  He took both
documents and went to consult with other attorneys.  After about 15 minutes, he, Attorneys Russell Lewis and Linda
Primrose, and Alice Richardson were in the room.  Attorney Lewis added wording to the Consent to Search and all
attorneys agreed to allow Alice Richardson to be served and to also sign the Consent to Search.  Both documents will be
uploaded to the attachment section of this supplement.  

End of supplement…………………………………………………………
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:FARRIS, D.  (F09041)Investigator: 03/23/2019 15:00:47, Saturday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/25/2019 19:33:54, Monday

On 3-23-19 at approximately 12:20 hours, Investigator Farris with the Harris County Fire Marshal`s office Arson
Division, received an e-mail from Captain Weston requesting that i contact a witness about some possible information
of the cause of the fire. Investigator Farris contacted Cindy Williams at and was able to leave a voice
mail. She later returned the call and at approximately 14:45 hours Investigator spoke to Mrs. Williams via telephone. 

She stated that she was talking to a friend of hers and they said that they knew a person who worked as a Control Room
Operator for the ITC company and that they were out working on the tank next to the tank that caught fire when it
kicked on and they fire started at the motor. 
She stated that the operator had his cell phone out in the field with him and was able to take pictures and video of the
fire when and where it originated. 

Mrs WIlliams stated that she did not want to identify her friend.  

Investigator Farris advised her that someone from the Harris County Fire Marshal`s office would contact her on
Monday 3-25-19 and set up a time and place for a face to face interview. She stated that she would be ok. 

Investigator Farris recorded the phone interview and it will be placed in the e-files tab of this supplement. 
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LOPEZ, G.  (F09081)Investigator: 03/26/2019 14:00:00, Tuesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/26/2019 15:47:19, Tuesday

On March 26, 2019 at 12:48 hours Investigator Jim Hargraves and I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, arrived at 1030 Ethyl
Road and made contact with Attorney Russell Lewis.  He was informed that we needed to re-interview Carl Holley,
Timothy Guidry, David Joseph Capetillo, and do an initial interview on John Burdett.  He was also informed that we
would want to interview them this week, preferably tomorrow (3/27/2019), and for him to call me at the end of business
day today to determine if arrangement have been made.  Investigators then left the location. 
 
End of supplement…………………………………………………….
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 03/26/2019 15:53:34, Tuesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 03/30/2019 14:06:59, Saturday

SUPPLEMENT:

On Tuesday, March 26, 2019, at approximately 13:49 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, employed by the Harris County
Fire Marshal`s Office did attempt to contact Cindy Williams in reference to information that she had pertaining to the
ITC Tank Farm fire.  I dialed the number provided for Williams as  and it went straight to voicemail, to
which I left a message for her to contact me.  I again attempted to contact Williams at 13:59 hours and received
voicemail again and again left a message.  A TLO search yielded a home phone land line number belonging to Williams
and at 14:17 hours, I dialed the number provided as , but it rang multiple times with no answering device
to pick up to leave a message, so I disconnected the phone call.  At 14:26 hours, I attempted to contact Williams for the
third time and it again went straight to voicemail and I again left a message for her to contact me.  I attempted to contact
her again for the fourth time at 15:32 hours, and again was met by a voicemail message and I again left a message for
her to contact me.  

Five attempts were made to contact Williams today, Tuesday, March 26, 2019, but the attempts were unsuccessful.  I
will continue to contact Williams so that we can setup a meeting to discuss the information that she has pertaining to the
investigation.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Wednesday, March 27, 2019 at approximately 14:13 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves and Lieutenant Lopez both
employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in unincorporated
Harris County in reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with employees of
Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC).

Upon arrival at approximately 16:18 hours, we met with representatives with the company.  They are attorneys
representing the company.  They are identified as Kent Mayo with Baker Botts, LLP, and Tom Kajander in house
counsel for ITC and Ivan Rodriguez with Phelps Dunbar, LLP.  They advised that one of the people we were wanting to
interview was held up in traffic due to a train which had delayed our arrival for over an hour.  They did advise that John
Burditt was available and a room to conduct the interview was secured.  The room was a conference room on the second
floor of the office located at the address mentioned above.  I advised that we would like to interview the people one at a
time and initially Tim Guidry was to be interviewed first, but due to his delay Burditt was selected. 

**INTERVIEW OF JOHN BURDITT** 

At 16:34 the interviews began with Lieutenant Lopez, Investigator Hargraves, Kent Mayo, and John Burditt present. 
The interview was audio recorded and all parties were identified by introducing themselves before any questions were
asked.  I asked John Burditt what his role at the company was and he stated that he is with the Operations Division with
Intercontinental Terminals Company as the Crew 1 Shift Manager.  He stated that he was responsible for all of the
operational aspects within the tank farm involving land, marine and tank to tank operations.  I asked how many people
he was responsible for and he stated that it varied from 28 to 35 personnel.  I asked if he knew what materials were
within the tank farm and he stated that it varied from customer to customer.  He stated that the tank farm received the
product from the customer and based upon the orders from the customer determined how the product was to be
distributed whether by land, rail or water.  I asked if he was working the day of the incident, Sunday, March 17, 2019
and he stated that he was not.  I asked if he working either the day before or day after and he said that he was not.  He
stated that he was relieved by Tim Guidry.  Burditt mentioned that Guidry is not his normal relief, but that Guidry was
stepping up for Kevin Young who was on vacation.  I asked how long that he had worked in the industry and he stated
for 32 years. I asked how long he had been employed with ITC and he stated 14 years.  I then asked how he traveled
within the complex and he stated that he has a company truck that allows him access to all portions of the tank farm.  He
stated that this is the safest from of travel as they have two public roads to traverse, those being Tidal Road and
Independence Parkway.

The interview continued and I asked what his scope of practice entailed and he stated that it was to ensure that all safety
procedures and protocols are followed and adhered to.  I asked him to tell me about Friday Morning when he was
relieved.  He stated that he was relieved by Tim Guidry who was stepping up for Kevin Young who is his 

Page 21

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 03/27/2019 14:13:00, Wednesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/05/2019 00:18:22, Friday

normal relief, due to Young being on vacation.  I asked what chemicals he dealt with on a regular basis and he stated
that they are "Clean Chemicals" like Naphtha and Benzene.  He stated that they sometimes deal with some oils and
gasolines, but it is dependent on the customer.  He said that his main focus is to be on the lookout for unsafe practices
and anything that appears out of the ordinary and especially any different smells.  I asked what the procedures for
reporting a fire are and he said that if a fire is found, the supervisor on duty is notified and then the supervisor contacts
security to activate the fire alarm and to get the emergency response team to respond to the fire house to obtain
firefighting equipment.  He stated that the fire truck is a fully operational fire truck and that the personnel have
firefighting ensembles to fight industrial fires.  He further stated that the members in the fire brigade are trained in
industrial firefighting techniques and procedures.  I asked if he knew any of the procedures that occur within the tank
farm pertaining to mixing and blending and he said that he knew that it occurred, but that he did not know about the
specifics of those operations.  He stated that the operators were responsible for that information.  He mentioned that
"shots" are made within the tank farm and that those "shots" are performed by the operator and that the specifics of
those "shots" are specified by the customer through an order.  All of the processes are dictated by the customer and
verified by the company according to Burditt.  I asked what type of tanks where involved with the fire and he described
them as "IFR" which stands for Internal Floating Roof.  I asked him about the purge process and he stated that was done
by a different division.  I asked about the "PIG" process and he said that process takes place when a tank is taken out of
service.  He stated that when the tank is cleaned out it is then turned over to Special Services Division.  He said that
Special Services documents the "PIG" process and it is done by paper and computer.  He said that process is known as a
clean out and that it is dictated by the customer and ITC follows what the customer has asked for.  I asked if there were
any clean out orders for the tank, 80-8 issued for the weekend and he said there were not.  He did say that clean out
orders are received during the week Monday through Friday, during normal business hours.  He said that Process Safety
must be notified and that they verify that all of the procedures are followed safely.  I asked about when a chemical is
brought in how they know what they are dealing with and he stated that they have a materials list and it is issued for
each customer order.  He mentioned dealing with gasoline and I asked about that procedure.  He said that sometimes
they deal with gasoline, but it is very rare, and that any blending occurs on the vessel and not within the tanks.  He
stated that the blends are loaded in a specific gravity order and that by gravity within the vessel it performs the blending
operation.  Information was obtained that Burditt had spoken with a family member and had mentioned an issue with
the "PIG" and that was the reason for the fire.  When Burditt was told that his brother had told us the information, he
became upset and denied saying that.  Lt. Lopez said that his brother Rob Thompson had told him about the "PIG"
failure and that something happen in the line.  Burditt denied saying this.  After that, the interview was concluded and
Burditt was upset that his brother would say something like that, but that he understood that we had to follow every
lead.  He then left the room.

**INTERVIEW OF TIM GUIDRY**

Tim Guidry was the next interview that was conducted.  The interviews began with Lieutenant Lopez, Investigator
Hargraves, Kent Mayo, and Tim Guidry present.  I asked what size Inlet valves were on the tank and he stated 
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that they were approximately 12" in diameter, about the size of a large pizza.  I asked if he was working the weekend of
the incident and he stated that he was.  I asked what his focus was and he stated that it was safety.  He said that he likes
to leave it like he found it, or better.  I asked him how many orders he was dealing with on the day of the incident and
he said that he did not know.  I asked if there was a difference between the terms Manager and Supervisor and he said
that there were.  He said that he is a supervisor and that his manager is Kevin Young.  Guidry said that Young was on
vacation and that he was the acting Shift Manager while Young was out.  I Guidry who he relieved the day of the
incident and he said it was Russell Taylor.  I asked if Taylor had passed on any issues and he said that he had not.  He
said that the main function of the plant was to receive product in and ship product out.  He said that is dictated by the
customer orders.  He said that any order that the customer sends in has to be approved by the company to ensure that it
meets safety guidelines.  I asked if the company has safety culture, and he said that it is everyone`s responsible.  He said
that if any employee finds an unsafe condition that they have the authority to stop the process immediately.  I asked if
employees receive training on safety and he said that they all receive annual and bi-annual training.  I asked what a
normal day was for him and he said that all of the supervisors arrive about an hour early and that most days the crew
consists of between 25 to 27 personnel.  He said that a safety meeting is then conducted to ensure that everyone is
committed to safety and knows the safety procedures for the day.  I asked where is that conducted and he said that it
takes place at the change house near the 100 tank farm.  I asked about the day of the incident and he said that it was the
last day of the shift and he said that there was nothing abnormal that day.  He remembered going to the traffic office to
get the orders for the day.  He said he discussed with traffic about which tanks were going offline and I then asked if
any repairs were occurring that day and he said no.  I then asked about 80-8 tank and he said that were on a "Campaign"
filling that tank.  He said that it was scheduled to have Butane offloaded from the trucks and then pumped into the tank. 
He said that after each truck, the recirculating tank must run for four hours to ensure proper blending.  He said that they
receive inject orders the day before the procedure and he had orders for injection to be done on Friday and Saturday.  I
again asked about any repairs to tank 80-8 and he said that ere were none.  I asked about the injection process and he
said that Butane is injected into the 80-8 tank to sweeten the mix.  I asked what was in that tank and he said Naphtha.  I
asked how many barrels the tank held and he stated 80,000 Barrels.  It should be noted that a Barrel is 42 Gallons and a
Drum is 55 Gallons and they are two different units of measure within the chemical industry.  He said that anytime the
injection process is occurring, the pump must be running and that after the truck is done offloading Butane, the pump
must run for at least four hours to ensure proper mixing and blending within the tank.  I asked if there was an indicator
that showed the pump was operational and he stated that in the Control Room there is an indicator that shows the pump
is operational.  He further stated that there is a sheet to indicate when the pump was started and when the pump was
stopped.  Each time the time is documented for this procedure.  I asked about how relief is done, and he said that each
person is responsible for relieving their counterpart and to ensure they know where they are at the process they are
responsible for.

I asked Guidry what he was doing prior to the fire and he stated that he was at Barge Dock 4 preparing for an offloading
procedure.  He said that prior to offloading a sample must be done using a Teledyne.  He said he hooked up the
Teledyne to Nitrogen to purge it in preparation for the rail cars that were coming in.  He said the Teledyne 

Page 23

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 03/27/2019 14:13:00, Wednesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/05/2019 00:18:22, Friday

was used to measure Oxygen levels and to make sure the levels were within the customer`s specification.  He said after
that he went to go check on Tank 80-16 as it had recently been hydro tested and he wanted to ensure that the tank was
still draining and he found that it was.  He said that as he was finishing at Tank 80-16, he heard a "Noise", looked up
and saw fire.  He said that it was elevated on the tank about 7 to 8 feet.  I asked what the "Noise" sounded like, and he
said it sounded like when railcars couple together.  He said he then reported the fire via handheld radio and said he told
the Emergency Response Team to respond the to the 1st and 2nd 80`s tank farm.  He said he then went to the Security
Office to notify them and activate the fire alarm.  He said he then made a phone call the Vice-President and Vice
President of Safety to report that there was a fire at the tank farm.  He said he then went to the truck manifold which is a
2" manifold and tried to use the monitor there located between Tank 80-7 and 80-10, but that the water pressure was not
sufficient.

I asked again about the Butane, and he said that it is a liquid and that it has to have the pump running.  I asked who was
in charge of that and he said the Pumper operator responsible for the tank.  He said that the truck operator can operate
the valves at the truck, but he has to get word from the Pumper to make sure the valves are opened properly.  Once he
sees the indicators that the pump is running they hit the inject valves and then the truck operator opens the valves on the
truck. After the required amount of Butane is received, the pump is left on for at least four hours after offloading.  I
asked what happened if the pump is left on and he said that as long as there is product in the tank the pump is constantly
recirculating product.

I asked if he saw anyone leaving the area when the tank was on fire and he said that he did not.  He said that he knew
the Pumper operator Joe had left the area, but he did not see him.  He said that he heard Joe say that the monitor needed
more pressure, so he went to that ware and checked to see if that was the case and it was.  Guidry stated that he found
that the monitor had low pressure.  He said he didn`t know where Joe was, but that he dropped his shit and got there fast
as soon as the fire was reported.  I asked when he reported the fire and he stated that at approximately 10:00 hours.  I
asked what the fire procedures where and he said that first they try to handle in house, but if it is large they call CIMA,
which is the Channel Industries Mutual Aid.  He said that Operations does not request the aid.  I asked if he knew how
much time elapsed for when the help from CIMA was requested and he said that he did not.  He said he remembers that
the fire was at aground level and that he saw a wall of fire engulfing 80-8 and 80-11.  I asked if he remembered the
noise if there was any pinging or high pitched whistles and he said that he did not remember hearing that type of noises. 
I asked if he knew the PSI rating of the tank and he said that he did not.  He said that he knows that the roof suppresses
vapor.  I asked if he knew anything about fugitive vapors and he said that he did not but he believes that it is released to
the atmosphere.  I thanked him for the information and the interview was concluded.

**INTERVIEW OF DAVID JOSEPH CAPETILLO**

After speaking with Tim Guidry, I had opportunity to speak with the operator responsible for the 80`s tanks the day of
the incident.  That person is identified as David Joseph "Joe" Capetillo.  His title at ITC is Pumper, Level II 
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and has been with ITC for approximately four (4) years.  He stated that he was on duty the day of the incident.  He
arrived at work at approximately 05:30 hours and began his regular routine of changing out in the change house and
getting ready for the day.  He stated that before work began that day all of the employees attended a tailgate safety
briefing.  Capetillo stated that those briefings occur before every shift.  He stated that they were down on manpower for
the day and that there are usually six (6) pumpers on shift.  On the day of the incident they only had five (5) on duty and
Jeremy was carrying an extra load for the day.  
He said that after the briefing he made his relief with Tyler and they discussed the "moves" that were going on and what
was running in the pipelines.  He said that he remembered a barge was loading on the 5 & 6 dock from tank 80-21.  He
stated that he was in the CCR (Control Room) and he said that all of the pumpers are in the CCR so they can monitor
their "stops" and that they can also program their "stops" so that they can have enough time to leave the CCR and close
the appropriate valves at the tank they are going to "stop".  
I asked what he was doing at the time of the incident and he said that he was at Tank 100-43, because it was not
communicating with the CCR.  He said he was taking a "Saub" rate at approximately 10:00 hours.  I asked how he
arrived at Tank 100-43 and he stated that he drove there.  He said prior to his arrival at Tank 100-43 he stopped by Tank
80-18.  He said that the tank had recently undergone hydrostatic testing and that it was full of water and was draining
out.  He stopped by the tank to ensure that it was still draining and to check the rates on that tank.  He said that at
approximately 10:03 hours, he herd Tim (Tim Guidry) callout on the radio about a fire.  He said he remembered Tim
state that there was a real bad fire in the 80`s.  He said that he got in his truck and "floored it" to Tidal Road.  He said
that he remembered getting his bunker gear and going down Tidal Road toward Independence Parkway to the third 80`s. 
He said he put his bunker gear on and told Security to lock the gate open as the fire truck was right behind him.  He said
he then drove to Tank 80-12 and got out to find a water monitor to begin cooling other tanks.  He stated that he found a
monitor between Tank 80-10 and 80-7 and turned the monitor toward the manifold and turned on the water.  He found
that the water pressure was "low" and he screamed on the radio that he needed more pressure.  He said that while he
was there waiting for the increase in pressure, the insulation on Tank 80-11 began to catch fire and that Tank 80-11 was
beginning to catch on fire.  He said that he stayed as close to the Dike Wall as he could, but that was all he could
remember.

I asked who was first in at the tank farm and he said that he was.  He said that he did not see any other personnel in the
tank farm.  He said that at some point he met up with Tim Guidry around the area of Tank 80-12 and 80-19 and he said
that he remembered meeting with other personnel at that area as well.  I asked if he remembered hearing any "whistling"
and he said he remembered hearing a "whistling" sound like noise pressure.  I asked if he heard any "pinging" and he
said that he did not.

I asked what his duty was that day and he said that Jeremey had asked him to take over the 80`s tanks for him and he
agreed.  I asked when that trade occurred and he said before the safety meeting.  I asked if his relief, Tyler Fehl had said
anything about the 80`s, like any issues or problems and he said there was nothing wrong with the 80`s.  I asked if any
failures had been reported and he said no.  I asked if there were any blending processes occurring and he said no.  I
asked if there were any injection or pump circulations occurring and he said no.  I asked if there 
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were any "PIG" operations scheduled and he said no.  I asked what he normally works on and he said that he works on
LPG, BP and 80`s as a pumper.  I asked if he had a cellular telephone with him and he said that he had the company
issued intrinsically safe phone.  I asked what it looked like and he said that it looks like a "brick".  I asked who is
allowed to have cellular telephones and he said supervisors and managers have those special phones.  I asked if he knew
of anyone having a phone in the tank farm and he said he did not know of anyone having a cell phone in the tank farm. 
I asked if he had a cell phone on him at the time of the incident and he denied, and he even stated that when the event
occurred he did not have the intrinsically safe cell phone on him.  He said that once the incident began his goal was to
put the fire out.  He was scarred for himself, but wanted to be safe and return to his family.

--EOR-
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**SUPPLEMENT**

On Wednesday, March 27, 2019 at approximately 17:45 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves and Lieutenant Lopez, both
employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did receive a black, 16 GB USB Sandisk thumb drive from
Russell Lewis an attorney with Baker Botts, LLC representing ITC.  The thumb drive contained a video showing the
tank farm fire.  The video was viwed on the attorney`s computer at ITC.  

The thumb drive was taken directly to the Evidence Room of the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office located at 2322
Atascocita Road which is in Humble, unicorporated Harris County, Texas. It was placed in Locker number 1 for safe
keeping with Evidence Tag # 1.34.2458570.75692.

--EOR--
JOH 95F33
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Thursday, March 28, 2019 at approximately 15:14, I, Investigator Hargraves and Lieutenant Lopez both employed
by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in unincorporated Harris County
in reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with employees of Intercontinental
Terminals Company (ITC).  All interviews were audio recorded and uploaded Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**INTERVIEW OF DEREK WALKER** 

I interviewed Derek Walker and he is the Special Services Supervisor.  He was not on duty at the time of the fire and
was notified at home about the incident.  He stated that there were no "PIG" operations scheduled for the weekend nor
on the day of the incident.  He was asked when the last "PIG" operation was performed on tank 80-8 and he said that he
did not know.  I asked how orders are generated and he said that all orders are done by the traffic office and are done by
a person identified as Kayla Bridges.

I asked him to describe the "PIG" process and he stated that the pig is inserted into the line and then the line is pressured
to 100 to 110 PSI to propel the "PIG" within the line.  He said that the "PIG" is approximately 2`` in diameter larger
than the pipeline it is being inserted into.  He said that the company uses a range of "PIG`s" from 6" all the way to 22". 
I asked how a "PIG" is cleared if it becomes clogged, and he stated that they send another "PIG" into the line, and if that
one becomes obstructed, they do not keep filling the line with "PIG`s".  He stated that the "PIG" is not used to separate
chemicals, and is used to clean out the line to prepare for a new chemical or per the customer requests.  He was asked
who does the repairs to equipment and he stated that is done by Maintenance.  He said that his group does the "LOTO"
which stands for Lock out, Tag out.  He also said that the maximum operating pressure for the lines is 100 PSI or 100
pounds per square inch.  I asked who was responsible for maintenance and he said Carlton "Spud" Homfield.  I asked
what his group, Special Services was responsible for and he said that they handled tank cleaning, degassing, new
construction and tie-ins.  Walker stated that it is very seldom for work to be done without being scheduled and nothing
was scheduled for that weekend.  

Work orders are received per customer requests from Monday 8:00 AM - 4:30 PM, and then moved to the appropriate
group for work to be done.  I asked what the main components of the tank are and he said that it is the sump, lateral and
dock line.  He then stated if Butane is injected into the process, then land traffic uses the same manifold so that there are
no reactions.  I asked how the piping is routed and he stated that each pipeline is labeled and dedicated to the specific
tank.

I asked about the alarm system for the tank and he described that the pump will send an alarm if a 10 pound differential
is detected.  He further stated that the pump will shut off automatically and an alarm will be sent to the control room.  It
will also state which tank is in alarm and an audible alarm will also sound in the control room.
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**INTERVIEW OF BRIAN BURRELL**

Spoke with Instrumentation Technician Brian Burrell.  He was on duty and at the Number one (1) dock.  He heard the
alarm and saw smoke, but was not in the area of tank farm at the time of the incident.  Refer to audio recording for
further details.

**INTERVIEW OF DAVID THOMAS - P# **

I then interviewed David Thomas who is a Switch Operator, Level IV and has been employed with the company for
approximately 7 years.  He was on duty and in the railyard in the northwest corner of the plant and was not near the tank
farm at the time of the incident.  Refer to audio recording for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF REYNALDO ARRENDONDO - P# **

I then interviewed Reynaldo Arrendondo who is a Dockman, Level III and has been employed with the company for
approximately 5 years.  He was on duty and was located at the Number two, three (2, 3) dock and was not near the tank
farm at the time of the incident.  Refer to audio recording for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF GREG MATHIAS - P# **

I then interviewed Greg Mathias who is a Dockman and has been employed with the company for approximately 22
years.  He was on duty and was located at the Number seven, eight (7, 8) and was not near the tank farm at the time of
the incident.  Refer to audio recording for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF GERALD HOLMES - P# **

I then interviewed Gerald Holmes who is an operator and was on the Number one (1) dock.  He was not near the tank
farm at the time of the incident.  Refer to the audio recording for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF STEVE LaPORTE - P# **

Steve La Porte was interviewed and is employed as a Marine Operator.  He has been with the company for 20 years.  He
was on duty and at the docks at the time of the incident.  Refer to the audio recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF KEVIN YOUNG - P#  / **

Kevin Young was on vacation at the time of the incident.  Tim Guidry was covering for him while he was on 
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vacation.  He is the Shift Manager and has been employed with the company for 15 years.  He stated that he did not
arrive on scene until 9:45 or 10:30 PM.  He said that he grabbed his bunker gear and headed to the 80`s manifold.  He
said he stopped in to meet with the Carl Holley in the CIMA trailer and get a situation report.  He was assigned to be the
operations chief of the south division.  That assignment came from Corey Guiccione who was the safety specialist at the
time of the incident.

I asked if there was any issues with fire water supply and he said there had been issues previously, but that issue had
been repaired prior to the fire.  I asked if he knew of any issues with any mechanicals at tank 80-8 and he said that he
did not know of any issues.  I asked if he knew of any issues with valves or instrumentation and he said that he did not.

Tim Guidry was covering for Young while he was on vacation and the question was asked how he felt about Guidry and
his capabilities.  Young stated that he found Guidry to be knowledgeable, capable, honest, and dependable, knows what
is "going on" and maintains a good flow of communication.  I asked about how product enters the tank and he stated
that for the 80`s tank farm it enters through the manifold for the specific tank and even though the tank capacity is
80,000 Barrels, the safe fill level may be 75,000 Barrels.  A barrel is approximately 42 gallons.  Young did state that all
of the employees are committed to safety and that they are all aware of the safety procedures that they are to follow.

**INTERVIEW OF JUAN DIAZ - P# **

After Kevin Young was interviewed, Juan Diaz was the next employee interviewed.  He stated that he is a Maintenance
Technician in the Valves and Hydraulics Section of Maintenance for the facility at Deer Park.  He has been employed
by the company for approximately 13 years, but has worked at the plant since 1988. Diaz was on duty at the time of the
incident and was also working overtime.  He was in the Administration Building building a wall, when he heard the
emergency alarms going off.  He looked out the window and saw smoke.  He said he exited the building and got in his
truck and went to Vopak on Tidal Road.  He stated that he was by himself, but he stayed of the radio due to the amount
of traffic.  He said after a while, his supervisor called to bring drinking water to the firefighters and he complied.  He
further stated that he did errands as requested by his supervisor.  Refer to the audio recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF THOMAS "TOMMY" CARSWELL - P# **

The next employee interviewed was Tommy Carswell.  He is a switchman and has been employed by the company for
approximately 6-1/2 years.  He stated that he was on duty at the time of the fire.  He was located in the railyard and
could see the fire in the 80`s tank.  He heard a supervisor on the radio state there was a fire and then heard the
emergency alarms.  He said once he heard the alarms, he left the railyard and went to Shelter "A" which is the Scale
Building.  He stated that he stayed at the Scale Building until 18:00 hours (6:00 PM).  Refer to the audio 
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recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF TRINO GALINDO - P# **

Trino Galindo was interviewed next.  He is the Jetty Master - Dock Supervisor and has been employed by the company
for 15 years.  He stated that he was on duty at the time of the incident.  He stated that he was in the Marine Traffic
Coordinator Building when he heard on the radio that there was a fire in the Second 80`s.  He stated that he remained at
the Marine Traffic Coordinator Building through the night so as to not abandon the dock.  He stated that he was relieved
at 21:00 hours and went home.  He stated that he has not heard anyone discussing possible cause for the fire nor has he
heard about a cell phone video showing the fire.  Refer to the audio recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF TYLER FEHL - P# **

Tyler Fehl was interviewed and he is a Pumper Level IV and was working the night shift on Saturday March 16, 2019
the night before the incident.  He stated that he was not on duty at the time of the incident but did come back in to assist
with the response.  He stated that he was relieved by Joe Capetillo.  He said that during their pass off he reported no
issues with the 80`s tank farm and that there were no special operations occurring with tank 80-8.  I asked if anyone was
talking about what happened and that no one knew.  He did state that tank 80-8 was close to being "full".  I asked if it
had an alert system and he stated that it did.  He said that he told Joe to watch "top off" on two tanks, 80-8 and 80-24. 
He stated that he had finished off loading the second truck of butane at approximately 22:30 hours on Saturday, March
16, 2019.  He then said that would mean that the circulation pump would need to run for a minimum of eight (8) hours. 
I asked if any butane trucks came in after the last off load or in the early morning hours and he said that he did not
know.  He said that the tank has both manual shut off and a remote shut off that is located at the Control Room.  I asked
if the pump was still running when Joe relieved him and he said that it was.  I asked if the Control Room is always
staffed and he said that someone is always in the Control Room and that is a dedicated person.  He said that the
dedicated person on the morning of the incident was Steve Mathias.  I asked if there is a display or an indicator within
the Control Room that shows the pump in operation and he said that there is.  Refer to the audio recordings for further
details.

**INTERVIEW OF JEREMY DICKERSON - P# **

The next person interviewed was Jeremy Dickerson.  He is a Pumper and has been employed with the company for
approximately 18 years.  He stated that he was in the Control Room with Dr. D, who is Steve Mathias.  He said that
Mathias was responsible for rates within the operation.  I asked what his duty station was that day and he said he was
working on BP and Base Oils.  He said that he was originally assigned to the 80`s tank farm, but that since Joe Capetillo
was working on overtime he asked what Joe wanted to work and Joe took the 80`s tank farm.  I asked if Dickerson
knew of any issues within the 80`s tank farm and he said that there were no mechanical issues or any 
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other issues that he knew of.

I asked if regular cell phones were allowed within the tank farm and he said no.  He said the only phones allowed are
the intrinsically safe cell phones issued by the company.  He said that they can have their regular cell phones in their
bags in the buildings, but that they have to be away from any equipment dealing with the tanks or process operations.

I asked if he heard or saw any indications on the boards for any alarms or indications of an issue in the 80`s tank farm
and he said everything was within normal operating limits.  I asked prior to the incident were there any audible or visual
alarms heard or seen and he said no.  I asked how he knew there was a fire and he said that he heard it on the radio.  He
said that all of the screens showed normal.  He said he then looked out the window and could see fire and smoke.  He
said he went to the fire house which is in close proximity to the Control Room and opened the doors to the fire house,
because he knew ERT would be responding.  ERT stands for Emergency Response Team.  After opening the doors to
the fire house he got in a truck and went to the tank farm to assist with the fire monitors.  I asked if he saw anyone
coming out of the tank farm and he said that he did not.  I asked if he had heard about what might have caused the fire
or seen a video taken showing a leak prior to the fire or that a process might have gone wrong and he said that he had
not heard or seen anything like that.

I asked if he knew of any repairs made to the pump on tank 80-8 and he said that over a year ago a pump was replaced
due to a noise.  He said that he did not know who reported it, but overheard a conversation about the pump being
repaired.  He stated that all of the pumper personnel know when a pump is taken out of service and when it is returned
to service.  Refer to the audio recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF JESUS BRAVO - P# **

I then interviewed Jesus Bravo who is an ERT member and is a member of the Safety Division.  He has been employed
with the company for approximately 4 years.  He stated that he was not on duty at the time of the incident, but when
notified responded to the incident.  He stated that he was recalled by the Safety Lead for the company.  He did make
mention that he had been in the plant from approximately 06:00 hours to 10:00 hours, due to a contractor using
equipment in the BD`S area.  He stated that he was there issuing permits for work to the contractors in the BD area.  

I asked if he knew of any safety concerns within the 80`s tank farm and he said that he did not.  I asked if there were
any permits issued for work in the 80`s tank farm for the weekend, and he said there were not.  He said there was no
reason for Safety to be in the 80`s tank farm.  I asked if there were any welders, generators or equipment in the 80`s
tank farm and he said no.  He said that for any work to be performed a work permit must be issued by a Safety member. 
He also said that any tools that are to be used in and around the tank must be approved by a Safety member.
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**INTERVIEW OF CARL E. HOLLEY - P# **

The last interview of the day was with Carl Holley.  Holley is the Vice President of Safety and Health Operations and
has been employed by the company for 38 years.  He stated that he was at home at the time of the incident and he was
notified by phone about a fire in the tank farm.  He said it was a male voice, but that he was unsure of the identity of the
male voice.  He said that when he arrived, he saw black, billowing smoke, but no flames were visible.  He said that he
believed that it was a failure of a gasket or flange because he saw flames emitting from a flange area based on what he
was seeing at the time of his arrival.
He made contact with the on duty supervisor, Tim Guidry who told him that he heard a "pop" and then saw fire.  I asked
if he knew of any video of the fire prior to being contacted or had he been showed a video, and he said that no one has
approached or shown him any such video.  I then asked who was allowed to have cell phones and he said that regular
cell phones are not allowed.  He said that the company provides intrinsically safe cell phones to managers and other key
personnel.  He said that he parked approximately 150` south on the road and made entry into the tank farm.  He said that
he could see several tanks on fire.  I asked which ones and he said 80-8, 8-0-9 and 80-12.  I asked if he was aware of
any issues with the fire water supply and he said that if there were any issues that he would be notified, but he was not
aware of any issues.  He said that no major issues had been reported prior to the fire.

I asked what the safety culture is like for the company, and he said that it is the top priority and that the core values of
the company begins with safety.  I asked him to describe the fire that he saw and he described it as a liquid fire at
ground level and then a pressure driven fire at approximately 3` to 6` off the ground.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Tuesday, March 26, 2019 at approximately 18:09 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves employed by the Harris County
Fire Marshal`s Office did receive a voicemail from Cindy Williams.  I contacted Williams and introduced myself and
why I was calling.  She stated that she knew of the existence of a video that showed the fire prior to its growing to what
was seen on the news.  She said that the person that has the video was a person that was working in the control room at
the facility.  She said the person was in the tank farm at the time of the fire and that he had a cell phone and that person
is scared because they are not to have cell phone in the tank farm.  She said that she obtained the information from her
son. I asked her to provide me with a written statement and she asked if she could attempt to get more information and I
told her absolutely.  She was hesitant, and I told her that she was doing the right thing and that she was brave.  I
appealed to her and she agreed to contact me on Friday when she wakes up.  I did tell her that if I did not hear from her
on Friday morning that I would contact her Friday afternoon.  

--EOR--
95F33
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Thursday, March 28, 2019 at approximately 10:09 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves employed by the Harris County
Fire Marshal`s Office did receive a voicemail from Cindy Williams.  I returned the voicemail at approximately 10:18
hours and spoke with Williams for approximately nine minutes.  During the conversation she stated that she no longer
wished to meet as she still did not know the name of the person involved and no longer wished to participate with the
investigation any further.  She stated that she suffered from anxiety and that she was nervous for being involved.  She
then stated that the person that had the video had since destroyed the video and was extremely nervous about having it. 
I told her that could possibly cause bigger issues as it was no destroying or tampering with evidence and she became
even more agitated.  I told her that if she did not want to be involved any further that I understood, but I asked that she
provide my information to the person that had the video and have them contact me.  I told her to tell them that we could
work out any issues, but that by hiding evidence or even destroying it could be an even bigger problem.  She then stated
that she would try to get some information over the weekend and that she would contact me on Monday.  I told her that
I would await her phone call and that I really wanted to talk to the person that had the video and she stated that she
understood.  I then disconnected the phone call.

--EOR-
95F33
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**SUPPLEMENT**

On Friday, March 29, 2019 at approximately 08:11 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves received a voicemail from Cindy
Williams.  I returned her phone call and she sounded very tired.  I placed the call on speaker phone and the call was
recorded.  She stated that she had further information about the possible video of the fire at the ITC Tank Farm.  She
said that the name Jeff or Jeffrey kept coming up and it seemed important to her.  She said that she was getting
information from her son and she refused to give information about her son.  She said he is Supervisor and does training
for a company like ITC.  I asked if the son worked for ITC, because we had a Williams scheduled for interviews and she
said no.

She said that she was tired and that she had not sept in approximately 72 hours.  I told her to get some sleep and that if
she had any further information to contact me.  I then disconnected the telephone call.  The recorded message was
uploaded to the Foray system at the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office.

--EOR--
JOH 95F33
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Friday, March 29, 2019 at approximately 08:30, I, Investigator Hargraves and Lieutenant Lopez both employed by
the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in unincorporated Harris County in
reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with employees of Intercontinental
Terminals Company (ITC).  All interviews were audio recorded and uploaded Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**INTERVIEW OF STEVE MATHIAS - P# ** 

The first interview of the day was with Steve Mathias also known as Dr. D.  He has been employed by the company for
approximately 34 years.  He was on duty at the time of the incident and was assigned as the Control Room Operator. 
He states that there are no windows within the Control Room, but that you can leave the room and see out the windows. 
He said that he has five (5) screens that he is responsible for.  In the top left screen is the alarm screen, in the bottom left
screen is the pipeline rates, in the top right screen is the Valve, Docks and Tank Summary, and in the bottom right
screen is the thermal oxidizer screen.  The fifth screen is used to receive SCATA data CBT`s, orders and miscellaneous
other programs within the computer system.  He said that not every operator has their screens setup the same way, but
all of them agree that the top left screen is the Alarm screen and is accepted as a standard setup.

I asked who else was with him in the control room at the time of the incident and he said Jeremy Dickerson.  I asked
that prior to the incident if any alarms sounded or appeared on the alarm screen and he said no.  I asked how he found
out about the fire and he said that he heard Tim Guidry on the radio say that there was a fire.  He said that he then
looked at the screen for the 80`s and all appeared normal and there were no alarms either audible or visual.  He also had
opportunity to see the pump screen and the indicator for the pump was "green".  I asked about the alarm scale and he
said they have three colors, red, purple, and orange.  Red is a level 1 alarm and is an immediate health and safety issue. 
Purple is a Level II alarm and requires immediate attention, but is not as serious as red.  Orange, is a Level III alarm and
requires attention but is a lower level than red and purple.  He saw no color alarms flashing on the screen.  I asked about
the high temperature alarms and the other alarms on the tank and he explained that for the temperatures, anything above
130ºF will sound the alarm.  If the temperature rises to 140ºF the alarm rating changes and if it is still not attended to, at
150ºF the pump will shut down automatically.  He knows that the high temperature alarm was set for the pump for
130ºF.
Mathias is not a member of the ERT and remained in the control room.  He stated that he stayed at his station and
monitored the other tanks within the plant.  I asked if there were any cameras in the area for remote monitoring and he
said there were not.  I asked if data was recorded prior o, during and after the incident and he said that data is captured
by the "TREND" report.  He said that the "TREND" report captures all issues when a major incident occurs.  I asked if
the company had a way or had software capability to capture what was displayed on the screens, like a screen shot of
the data he was looking at and he said that the system did not have such capabilities.  I asked 
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for the "TREND" data and he said that he knew that OSHA had a copy, and the attorney that was present during the
interview stated that he would get that data to us as soon as possible.
I asked if he knew of any outside contractors or work being performed in the 80`s tank farm the day of the incident and
he said no.  I asked if he knew of any work orders being issued for that day and he said no.  I asked how he
communicated with pumpers out in the field, in case one of their tanks was near capacity or they needed to check
something out, he said they communicate via radio.

I asked if he knew the pump for tank 80-8 was running, and he said that he had no prior knowledge about the pump
running until the incident occurred.  I asked if he knew of any pump issues prior to the incident and he said that he did
not.  I asked if anyone else was in the control room during the incident and he said that the control room is a shelter in
place and he said that some employees came in to the control room due to the incident.

**INTERVIEW OF ISAAC SALAZAR - P# *

I then interviewed Isaac Salazar who is an operator and has been employed with the company for approximately 10
years.  He stated that he was in an area named the New Outback.  He stated that he found out about the fire when he
heard Tim Guidry on the radio say there was a fire.  I asked if he knew the voice on the radio as Tim Guidry and he said
that he did.  He said that once he knew of the fire he went to shelter in place in the Change House.  He said there were
four other personnel with him.  He said that no one knew anything about the cause of the fire.  I asked if any video was
being shown in the change house dealing with the fire and he said no.  I asked if he was a member of the ERT and he
said no.  Refer to audio recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF DERRICK JACKSON - P# **

Derrick Jackson was the next person interviewed and his title at the company is Operator III.  He said that was on duty
at the time of the incident.  I asked where he was assigned that day and he said the barge docks.  At the time of the
incident, however he was in the change house at the time of the incident awaiting a barge to connect.

He heard overt the radio that there was a fire and recognized the voice as Tim Guidry.  He said that he remembered
hearing small fire in the 80`s and then heard the person notify Security to sound the alarms.  He remembers the alarms
sounding and then hearing Guidry call for all ERT members to respond.  

He said that since he is not ERT he got with his supervisor Trino Gallindo and they disconnected all of the barges and
vessels and shut down the docks.  He said that he made sure that all of the valves were closed and that all hoses were
secured.  Refer to audio recordings for further details.

**INTERVIEW OF SEDRICK MILLER - P# **
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I then spoke with Sedrick Miller who is an Operator, Level I and has been employed with the company for
approximately 8 months.  He stated that he was on duty at the time of the incident and was assigned to the 11-12 docks
loading barges.  He further stated that he was working by himself.  He said that he heard on the radio that there was a
fire and he looked over in the direction of the tank farm and saw smoke.  He said that he remembered hearing on the
radio that it was a small fire.  He said that after approximately 10 minutes after the initial radio traffic about the fire he
was contacted to stop all "movements".  He stopped all movements and waited at the docks until approximately 17:00
hours.  He said that Lance Green gave him a ride to the change house where he stayed until 18:00 hours. I asked if
anyone was talking or saying what possibly caused the fire and he said no, that everyone was wandering what was going
on.  I asked if he was shown any video of the fire or before it got bog and he said no.  Refer to audio recordings for
further details.

**INTERVIEW OF CHRIS RIVERS - P# **

I then spoke with Chris Rivers who is a Pumper I and has been employed with the company for approximately 5 years. 
He was on duty at the time of the fire and was assigned to the Base Oil area of the facility.  He said that it is on the
opposite side of the facility as tank 80-8.  He said that he found out about the fire via radio.  He said that he recognized
the voice on the radio as Tim Guidry.  He said that he had a truck and picked up a member of the ERT and took him to
the fire house.  Rivers then said that he drove to the 80`s tank to help with suppression operations.  I asked if he knew of
a video that showed the fire prior to it becoming a larger incident and he said no.  I asked if he had heard anything about
a process going wrong, or any possibilities for what might have started the fire and he said that he had not.  I asked if he
saw anyone in the tank farm or coming from the tank farm and he said that he did not.

**INTERVIEW OF BRYAN YANCEY - P# **

Spoke with Bryan Yancey who was not on duty at the time of the fire.  He said that he is a switchman and is assigned to
the rail yard.  Yancey has been employed with the company for approximately 8 months.  I asked how he found out
about the fire and he said through the media.  I asked if he knew about a video that might exist or any conversations
about the fire and he said that no one has shown him a video or spoken to him about the fire.  He said that the company
is contacting him about work and assignments.

**INTERVIEW OF LANCE GREEN - P# *

Spoke with Lance Geen who is an Operator II with the company.  He has been employed with the company for
approximately 1 year.  He was on duty at the time of the incident and was working at the New Manifold.  He said that
the New Manifold is not close to the 80`s tank farm and is closer to the docks.  He said that he saw smoke in the area of
the 80`s tank farm and then he heard over the radio that there was a fire.  He recognized the voice on the radio as that of
Tim Guidry.  I asked if he was on the ERT and he said that he was not.  I asked if he shut 
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everything down and he said that he did.

He said that after he shut everything down went to the change house to await instructions.  He was instructed to take the
drivers of the 18 wheelers to the scale house and he did.  He said he then stayed at the scale house.  He left the scale
house to help Sedrick unhook a barge after that they went to the change house to await going home.

I asked if anyone was showing a video of the fire or was talking about a process that went bad or possibly a cause of the
fire and he said that no one was talking about the fire or showed him a video.

**INTERVIEW OF KEVIN WILLIAMS - P# **

I then spoke with Kevin Williams.  Williams was on duty at the time of the incident and has been employed with the
company for approximately 2-1/2 years.  On the day of the incident he was assigned to the Docks.  His title with the
company is Operator II.  He stated that he found out about the incident when he heard Tim Guidry over the radio saying
that there was a fire.  He said that he then got with the Jetty Master at the Change Master Building.  He said he was
placed on standby to await further instructions.  He said he then received instructions from Marine Traffic to disconnect
all barges and vessels.  He said after doing that he awaited further instructions.  I asked if he knew of anyone working in
the 8-`s tank farm and as far as he knew no one was working on equipment.  He said he knew that an operator named
Colt was loading a truck from tank 80-18 earlier in the day and that truck was located at the E-7 scales.  He said that
was all that he knew.

**INTERVIEW OF COLT TATE - P# **

I then spoke with Colt Tate.  Tate is an Operator II and has been with the company for 13 months.  Tate was on duty at
the time of the incident and was assigned to the truck manifold in the Outback which is close to the docks.  He said that
he is not a member of the ERT.  He said he was notified of the event via radio, but he said that he could not specifically
identify a particular voice, due to multiple voices on the radio.  He then went to the nearest muster point, and then made
sure to sign the accountability sheet.  He knew that it all were accounted for and awaited further instructions.

He said that Alonzo with Security stayed with them at the muster point until it was determined it was safe to go home. 
He said that he spoke with Kevin Williams, but doesn`t remember talking about the 80-16 or the E-7 scales.  He said all
that he remembered was seeing smoke and then later it was confirmed to be a fire, but doesn`t remember anything
specific.
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Supplement Report / Follow Up Investigation 
Lieutenant T. Hilton 95F8
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On Saturday, March 30, 2019 Chief Bolton 954 and Lt. Hilton 95F8 met with Russell C. Lewis with Baker Botts LLP,
who is the attorney representing ITC. He provided a black USB drive with documents pursuant to a subpoena issued by
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office (HCFMO). The USB drive was entered as evidence, placed in an envelope and
labeled. The envelope was secured inside Chief Shaw`s office to make a working copy and then will be placed into the
HCFMO evidence facility.

End of Supplement
TDH-95F8
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SUPPLEMENT:
On Monday, April 1, 2019 at approximately 14:29 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves and Lieutenant Lopez both
employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in unincorporated
Harris County in reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with employees of
Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC).  All interviews were audio recorded and uploaded Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**INTERVIEW OF AARON BAQUET - P# * 

I spoke with Aaron Baquet who is an Operator IV and has been employed by the company for approximately 18 years. 
Baquet was on duty at the time of the incident and assigned to the 5 dock.  He said that he heard there was a fire in the
80`s and then heard an audible alarm.  He stated that he is not an ERT member and when he heard there was a fire
began to shut down the "moves".  He stated that he remained at the dock until the barges were disconnected then he
went to the change house to shelter in place.  He said that while he was in the change house he did not hear any
conversations about the cause of the fire, about a process, nor did anyone show him a video on a cell phone.  He said
everyone was really in shock about the fire.

**INTERVIEW OF VICTOR FLORES - P# **

I then spoke with Victor Flores who is an LPG pumper and has been employed with the company for approximately 12
years.  Flores was on duty at the time of the incident and is not an ERT member.  He stated that he was in the control
room with Steve Mathias and Juan Campos.  He said that he was at his station and was getting rates on the LPG tanks. 
He said that he checked the pressure, circulation rate, and temperatures.
  
He said he was responsible for approximately 17 tanks.  He heard on the radio about a fire in the 80`s.  He said he
recognized the voice on the radio as that of Tim Guidry.  After hearing the call on the radio he heard the alarm, which
was an outside air horn indicating there was an emergency in the plant.  He said he immediately looked at the screens
and saw no visual alarms on the screens and he said there were no audible alarms sounding within the control room.  He
said he left his station and looked out the window toward the tank farm to see if he needed to do anything.  He said he
got in his truck and drove over to the tank farm.  He said the fire truck was already on scene. 
 
He said that he helped out as much as he could by unrolling hoses, make couplings and just to give a helping hand to the
ERT as much as he could.  He said after he did that, he went back to check on his tanks and all was ok.  He then went
back to the control room and began to shut down the "moves" that he had in process.  He said that during the incident,
he lost communications with his tanks and so he checked them manually every two hours.  He said he just drove around
the tank farm to ensure that nothing else was unusual.  He said that he also did a perimeter check to ensure that all was
secure.
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**INTERVIEW OF SAM KERR - P# **

I then spoke with Sam Kerr who is that Marine Coordinator and has been employed by the company for approximately
40 years.  He was on duty at the time of the incident and was in the Traffic Building.  He said that all orders to be
processed come to the traffic building.  He said that he heard Tim Guidry say there was a fire in the second 80`s and it
sounded like he was running and out of breath.  I asked if he heard any audible alarms indicating an emergency and he
said not right away, but that he did hear them a short time later.  He also said that in the traffic building he usually
operates on channel two which is for ship traffic and channel one is for the plant.  He switched some of his traffic from
channel one over to channel two to reduce radio traffic.

He stated that he gave the orders to shut down all of the "moves" in process, and he said that he did this to minimize
flow to the affected area.  He said that he had the dock men "block-in" the vessels and barges.  He stated when the
"moves" in the pipeline are stopped all of the pumps will shut down and then the operators will manually shut all of the
valves.  He stated that all of the pumps were shut down to the best of his knowledge.
  
He stated that he then contacted Karl Kuhn, known as KK to come back to the plant that there was a fire.  KK is the
Vice President of Operations and usually comes to the plant on the weekends to see what is all going on.  After
speaking to KK, he called the barges and told them to stay in the fleet.  He said he had two coming in one belonging to
Kirby Inland and the other to American Commercial Barge Lines.  He also had a vessel coming in and he kept them
coming, but he said if the situation changed he would call them back.  About an hour later he called the vessel back and
told them to lay berth at Barbour`s cut.  He said the pilots were calling him and he told them they had a situation, but
gave no further details.  He also said that customers were calling and he referred them to management.  He said the
United States Coast Guard called him twice.  He said that they strongly recommended closing their docks and he
complied.

He said that he remained in the building and monitored the radio.  He said that people came into the building to shelter
in place.  He said he tried to calm them down and continued to monitor phones.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Wednesday April 3, 2019 at approximately 09:00 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, Investigator Ledford and
Lieutenant Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in
unincorporated Harris County in reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with
employees of Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC).  At approximately 10:30 hours, I departed ITC and the
interviews were conducted by Lieutenant Lopez and Investigator Ledford until I could return.  See their supplements for
further details.  I arrived back at ITC at approximately 12:30 hours, and was instructed that Carlton "Spud" Homfeld
was scheduled for a re-interview at 13:00 hours.  I then conducted the re-interview and the rest of the interviews for the
day with the assistance of Lieutenant Lopez and Investigator Ledford.  All interviews were audio recorded and uploaded
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**RE-INTERVIEW OF CARLTON "SPUD" HOMFELD - P# ** 

I re-interviewed Carlton Homfeld is also known as "Spud".  He is the Director of Maintenance and was not at the plant
at the time of the incident.  He was in Orlando, Florida at a volleyball tournament for one of his grandchildren.  He was
made aware of the fire at the plant by the E-NOTIFY app on his cellular telephone.  He said he then called the COO of
the company identified as Bob Pennacchi about the incident.  He stated that he was given an update by Pennacchi about
what was going on at the plant and what was being done to mitigate the situation.  He said he then called and spoke with
two of his personnel Scott and Miguel about the situation as well.  He said that most of the information that he obtained
about the situation was from the internet.  I asked if he knew about the tanks and that tank farm and he said that he did
due to his 39 years of experience with the company.

I asked if he was aware of any issues with the 80`s tank farm and he said that there were no issues and nothing had been
written up for repairs.  He stated that all maintenance issues come through his maintenance division.  I asked about tank
80-8 and the manifold connected to it and if he remembered making any repairs to that area of the tank, specifically that
tank.  He said that in December of 2018 a pump was written up for making a "noise".  He said that the Millwrights
determined that the bearing was bad.  He said that Operations did the "LOTO", which is a lock out, tag out.  He said the
replacement was a "drive-in", which meant that the mechanics brought a pump assembly to the tank and removed the
old pump and replaced it with a new unit.  He said that the one that was put into service had been previously rebuilt and
the one removed was repaired and retained as a spare.  I asked if he knew the pump unit replacing the bad unit was also
bad, and he said that he did not know.  He stated that once the maintenance personnel installed the pump that operations
was responsible for bringing the pump back online and ensuring that everything was working properly.  I asked what
checks were performed by his personnel after completing installation and he stated that the pump is pressure tested both
for primary seal and secondary seal to make sure it is properly seated using an inert gas like Nitrogen.  Operations
would then refill the pump and start the recirculation process.  I asked if that was done when this pump was replaced
and he stated that it would be on the work order, 
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but said that there was no specific box to check off that the operation had been completed.

I asked about the maintenance division and how it was setup and he stated that he has four supervisors that are assigned
a group of people.  He said the three divisions within maintenance are Electrical, Mechanical, and Instrumentation.  The
Electrical supervisor is Travis Williams, Mechanical has two supervisors who are Larry Kitchens and Josh Wilson, and
the Instrumentation supervisor is Matt Plant.
  
I then asked if Safety is present while work is performed and he said that they are present for permits for equipment
entry and that they are not necessarily at the site when work is performed.  I asked when the pump was replaced when
the work occurred and he stated that it was done after hours.  He stated that Safety or Environmental Control would
issue the permits for that type of work.

I asked about the pump for the tank and he stated that the pump is rated for 3500 to 4000 barrels an hour.  He stated that
some of the pumps in the tank farm are variable speed and the operator can control the amount of product being moved,
but he was unsure if that pump on tank 80-8 had the variable speed control.  He said the Variable Frequency module
allows for the motor to be sped up or slowed down depending on the operator.  He further stated that all fittings are
monitored for emission and that is done for state reporting purposes.  The emissions testing is done by a company called
Ameritech or Ameritek.

I asked if there was any gas detection that would sound an alarm in the control room if a leak was detected and he stated
that gas detection is not equipped in that tank farm and it is installed at the LPG tanks.
I asked about the rebuilding process and if parts were cannibalized from other pumps and he stated that the process is
not "piece meal".  He said that all surfaces are checked per manufacturer specifications and if they are found to be out of
tolerance they are replaced with new components.  He further stated that all bearings are brand new.  I asked if an old
pump is rebuilt and brought back to tolerances, if it was tagged and stored to show that it had been rebuilt and he said
there is not a tagging system in place.  He said that no used items are stored on the shelf with rebuilt items.  I asked
about automation instrumentation on the pumps and he said that if the tank was installed with automation it would send
data to the "SCADA" system.  I asked if safety was a concern and he stated that it was a primary concern.  He further
stated that everyone from the owner of the company to a new hire has the right and obligation to stop a process if they
believe it to be unsafe.

I asked if had overheard anything regarding a cell phone video, or a process going bad, or even a leak and he said he has
not heard or seen anything in that regard.  I asked if he knew who repaired the pump and he stated that it was Matt
Anders and Chris Robles.  He said that the mechanics are in charge and have the final say that the job is complete. 
They then present there completed documentation to operations and operations has mechanics sign the "LOTO" and
operations then brings the pump on line.
I asked if he had conversation with anyone about the fire and he stated that he did and it was with Chris Mc Cluskey
who is in his group and is a member of the ERT and as well as with Zach Everett who is also in the 
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group and is also a member of ERT.  Both told him that there was a fire in the terminal and they were called to respond. 
I asked if he asked them if they knew what happened and he said that he did not ask.

**INTERVIEW OF MATHEW ANDERS - P# **

I then spoke with Mathew Anders the Millwright who was assigned to work on the pump that was making a "noise". 
Anders has been employed by the company for approximately 4 years, but has been in the industry working on rotating
equipment, pumps, and blowers.  He replaces bearings and seals as needed and makes sure that when the tolerances are
not within specifications, a new pump housing is ordered.  I asked what that range was and he said it was between
.008"-.010", would be considered loose.  I asked what type of fits he used and he said that the bearing is an interference
fit in to the pump housing and that the bearing is press fit onto the shaft.  I asked that when he makes repairs if there is a
tagging procedure in place and he stated that if he specifically repairs the pump, he tags it as repaired and places a tag
that the repair was completed.

I asked what was done if a seal was bad and he said that seals are field replaceable, whereas the pumps are removed and
repaired at the maintenance building.  A repaired or new pump is then installed so that that the tank can return to
service.

I asked if he remembered working on the pump on tank 80-8 and he said that he did and that it was done sometime in
mid-December.  He said that it was a mechanical seal change and that only the seal was replaced and not the whole
pump.  I asked if there was a log kept of maintenance performed and he said that all of the mechanics keep and sign a
daily log that is turned into Carlton "Spud" Homfeld.  He said the record is also kept on the computer in the
maintenance building.

I asked if he remembered who requested the pump to be repaired or replaced and he said that he did not know who
reported the "noise" in the pump.  I asked for him to explain the repair or replacement of a pump process.  He said that
he knows that the pumper reports the issue to the pumper supervisor and that supervisor then notifies the maintenance
supervisor of the need for a repair on a piece of equipment.  Then the mechanics receive a work order assigning them to
conduct the repair or replacement.  He said that he then inspect the equipment for the reported "noise" or issues per the
work order.  He said that he then notifies Operations that the pump needs to be run and they accommodate his request. 
Then, if the issue is located a schedule is made to make the repair.  He then stated that when the day to make the repair
arrives, Operations does the "LOTO" and he signs their form and he then places a lock on their lock to ensure that no
one can energize the equipment while repairs or replacement is being made.  After the equipment is repaired or replaced
leak detection is performed.  He said that he uses a soap-like solution and the equipment is pressured up with Nitrogen
to 100 PSI.  Leaks are checked for and he then spins the rotating equipment assembly by hand to ensure smooth
operation and also feeling for any out of roundness issues.  I asked if he removed any detectors or had any turned off
when he was working on the pump at tank 80-8 and he said that the detectors are located before and after the pump.  He
also said that the data is recorded in the control 
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room constantly.  He even mentioned that the data was being transmitted from the tank even with them working on the
system.  He did know that the temperature sensor for the tank is very sensitive.

I asked when the pumps are repaired are the stored anywhere specifically and he stated that they were kept on a shelf in
the maintenance building as well an in Conex boxes near the maintenance building.  I asked if he knew what type of
pump tank 80-8 had and he said that it was a XLTX/Gould pump, but that was all he knew.  He had mentioned that they
ordered power frames from the vendor and I asked what a power frame consisted of and he stated that it was a pump
housing, shaft, adapter and bearing.
I asked if he spoke to anyone about the fire and he said that a friend called him while he was at church.  He identified
that person as Steve Gonzalez.  He said that all of the information he learned about came from the news.  He said that he
was not aware of any process gong bad or any leaks prior to the fire.

**INTERVIEW OF CHRISTOPHER ROBLES - P# **

Christopher Robles was interviewed as he was working with Anders on the pump in December.  He has been employed
by the company for 8 months.  His title is Area Tech.  He said that he saw the news on Sunday morning about a fire at
the facility and he found out that there was a fire on Monday when he reported to work.  He said that he has not spoken
to anyone about the fire.  All he remembers is that a repair was made to a pump about four months ago in December. 
He does not remember any specific work performed or what he even did.  He did know that Matt Anders was the
Millwright who did most of the work.  HE also remembered being called out toe tank 80-8 and that both he and Anders
were working.  He has not heard or seen anything nor is aware of any videos, process or leaks around tank 80-8.  He
was asked if he remembered if they removed the pump to replace a bearing or if the y replaced a seal and he said he did
not remember.  He said that he has done seal repairs on other pumps but does not remember doing seal repair,
specifically on pump 80-8.  He said that he does remember starting work at the tank at approximately 11:00 hours and
completing work at 17:00 hours.  He said he was aware and does know that all of their activities are logged daily and
that each person doing the work signs off on it before it is submitted to their supervisor.  I asked if he has looked back
on previous work on that tank and he said that he has not.  I asked who had access to the daily logs and he said that
"Spud" has access to everyone`s logs.  He further stated that if "Spud" has not received a daily log from a mechanic he
calls them out at the morning meeting to get it submitted.  Robles was asked if he remembered using any equipment on
the day the pump was repaired and he stated that a truck for sure because they drove out to the tank farm, but unsure if a
crane or "cherry-picker" was used.  He said that messaged a buddy of his about the fire and sent him a link t the news
about the fire.  That person is identified as Zach Everett.

**INTERVIEW OF MARCUS WILSON - P# **

Marcus Wilson was interviewed after Robles and he is an Operator III with ITC and has been employed by the company
for approximately 3-1/2 years.  He was on duty at the time of the incident and was assigned to the new 
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truck manifold.  This manifold is located on the north side of the facility closest to the docks.  He said that as he was
arriving at the new truck manifold he heard Tim Guidry call out over the radio that there was a fire in the 80`s and that
all ERT was to respond.  He is a member of the ERT so he left the new truck manifold and went to the fire house.  He
then grabbed his gear and got on the fire truck and responded to the 80`s tank farm.  He said that the fire truck was
parked on the side of the road near gate 3.  He said he put on his gear and assisted with firefighting operations.  He said
he stayed as long as he could until he was told to go home.  He said he got a ride back to the change house and he kept
his gear with him.  He said he came back on Tuesday evening at approximately 14:00 hours and assisted in firefighting
operations.  He said that he has heard nothing nor did he know of any process, video or leak.  He was asked if anything
seemed out of place or out of the ordinary within the tank far and he said no.  He was asked about safety practices and
he said that safety is the name of the game and that it is taken very seriously.

** INTERVIEW OF DAVID ZUNIGA - P# **

David Zuniga was the next person interviewed.  He is an Operator I and has been employed by ITC for approximately 9
months.  He stated that he was on duty at the time of the incident and that he was assigned to the 100`s rail rack.  The
100`s rail rack is located on the north end of the facility close to the docks.  He stated that he was working with Matt
Celenias.  HE said that they were loading rail cars when he heard Tim Guidry on the radio say that there was a fire.  He
said that they immediately shut down rail car loading and he knew that an ERT Member named Chris Bethly was
working in the 12`s Rack.  Knowing that he contacted Bethly and told him to respond and that he would shut down what
Bethly was working on.  Zuniga stated that he heard the alarms sounding while he was performing his tasks.  He said
that after he finished, he went to the scale house rally point and there were approximately 5 other personnel there.  He
said that they did not speak about the fire as the focus was on personnel accountability and making sure everyone was
accounted for.  He said that he remained at the scale house until he was told to go home.  He said he went to the change
house and that the incoming supervisor told them to go home.  He went home at approximately 18:00 hours.  He denies
knowing about or seeing any video, a process or a leak.

** INTERVIEW OF MICHAEL HUFFMAN - P# **

I then spoke with Michael Huffman who is a pumper and has been employed by the company for approximately 6 years. 
Huffman is also a member of the ERT.  He was on duty at the time of the incident and was assigned as LZ pumper. 
This area is near the docks.  At the time of the incident he was in the control room when he heard Tim Guidry on the
radio call for "all ERT to the 80`s we have a big fire".  He stated that he was doing an in process transfer, but that he
abandoned it to go to the fire.  He had a truck, so his mind was on the fire and not the process, but that he did contact
the control room to shut down the process as this was going to be a large scene.  He said he went to the fire house which
is approximately 50` from the control room, grabbed his bunker gear and put it in his pickup truck and drove to the 80`s
tank farm.
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He said that he arrived and believed he was the first one there and did not make entry, but walked to the center of the
retaining wall and saw that the fire was large and that monitors could only be used.  He said he waited for more
personnel to arrive so that a game plan could be formed.  He said that a few moments later a game plan was formulated
and the plan was to look for monitors not in use and activate them.  His recon indicated that all were in use and he
observed a good pattern from them and the monitors appeared to be effective.

He said that he remained with firefighting operations until he was relieved.  He did not observe anything that was
suspicious and he stated that he did not know of any video, process, or a leak.  He said that everybody is wondering
what happened.  I asked if tank 80-8 would be controlled from the control room and he said that it was.  He said that he
was with Steve Mathias, Dr. D who was the manager of the control room at the time of the incident as well as Jeremy
Dickerson.  He said that the other operators were out of the control room doing their job.  He said that there are four
screens and the top left is the alarm screen.  If there is an alarm, it makes an audible sound and that you can hear it
within the room.  He said that he did not hear or see any alarms in the control room at the time of the incident that
would indicate there was an issue.  He mentioned that some tanks have newer technology on them that provide more
data to the control room, but not all of them have been fitted with the newer technology.
He said that operators do not usually stay in the control room, that they perform rounds and walk their tank farms once
an hour.  I asked if a log was kept of this action and he said there are no logs kept.  He was asked how the company
would know the walk check had not performed, and he said that they would not only if the operator said they did not do
it. He stated that during the walk check the operator is looking for anything out of the ordinary.  I asked if leaks could
be heard more than seen and he said that it is really loud in the tank farm so a leak would be found visually rather than
audibly.  He stated that if a leak is found the control room is contacted and the pump is shut off remotely.  If the pump
continues to run after the control room is contacted, the pump is shut off manually.  He said the pump is used for
product movement, whether it be to a vessel or product transfer and even includes circulation of product as well.  He
stated that if a leak occurs or is found, it is reported immediately.

Huffman was asked how many stations were in the control room and he stated that there are seven stations.  He said that
he believed that 80-8 had the newer technology installed as mentioned earlier.  He did not know of the tank had an
alarm system.  He said that some of the older tanks do not have the same technology.  He said that some have level drop
indicators and some do not, but he is sure that some level drop indicators.
I asked about the control room and its staffing and he said that it is 24 hours a day.  He said that the control room
manager must be relieved by a control room manager or a qualified operator.  He said that in his six years of
employment he has never seen the control room unmanned.

--EOR--
JOH 95F33
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On April 3, 2019 at approximately 10:58 hours Investigator Dustin Ledford and I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, conducted
an interview on Carlton "Spud" Homfeld, who is the maintenance supervisor.  He stated that he was on vacation in
Orlando at the time of the fire.  He was asked if he knew any repairs done to Tank 80-8, especially the pump and stated
that in December, the pump was taken down for maintenance because the pump was making a "noise."  He stated that
the possibly the repairs consisted of a bearing, drive end, and assembly shaft.  I asked him if he remembers who made
the report that the pump was making a "noise" and stated that it was operations.  He gets the work order and assigns the
job.  The repair should have taken 3-4 hours.  I informed Mr. Homfeld that a second interview will have to be
conducted with Investigator Hargraves.  The interview concluded.  

End of supplement…………………………………………………………….
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On Thursday, April 4, 2019 at approximately 15:51 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves was contacted by Tom Kajander
who is the in house counsel for ITC.  He stated that the interviews for the two remianing employees have been
scheduled.  At 4pm we are scheduled to meet with Ted Little and at 6pm we are scheduled to meet with Mr. Bethly. 
Also, Kajander stated that he is still working on getting clearance to do a walkthrough at the maintenance warehouse. 
The weather and winds have made it difficult to ensure that the building is not within the Warm or Hot Zone.  I advised
that until it is safe to enter we would wait until it is safe to do so.  I then disconnected the phone call.

--EOR--
JOH 95F33
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Follow Up Investigation 
Investigator D. Ledford 95F27
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On 04/04/2019 at 11:40 hours Investigator D. Ledford 95F27 and Lieutenant G. Lopez 95F7 responded to 2211 East X
St., Deer Park, TX 77536 in unincorporated Harris County.  

This was in reference to Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office case number
1903-00046, Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC) Fire Incident. Address for ITC is 1943 Independence Pkwy, La
Porte, TX 77083.  

Investigator Ledford arrived at 2211 East X St., Deer Park, TX 77536 at 12:10 hours.  Investigators made contact with
Deer Park Fire Department Medic 2`s crew Michael William Parker and Christopher Ryan Wilke.  Both advised that
they were on duty the day of the incident and responded to the incident at ITC in Medic 2.

Investigator Ledford interviewed Mr. William Parker in the "watch office" located at the above address, this location
allowed for Mr. Parker to be interviewed privately.  Mr. Parker has been employed by Deer Park Fire Department for 4
years and is currently a Lieutenant/Paramedic assigned to Station 3 Medic 2.  Mr. Parker advised that the day of the
incident he was working with Paramedic Ryan Wilke and was at the station at the time of the incident.  He was made
aware of the incident through the department dispatch center and immediately walked outside the apparatus bay and
could see a black plume of smoke coming from the direction of ITC.  He advised they responded immediately and
arrived on location on Independence Parkway shortly after Deer Park Fire Department Safety Officer 430 Tommy
Archer. Upon arriving at this location Mr. Parker states he could see a fire inside the tank farm and advised Mr. Wilke
that they were too close and needed to move further away.  Mr. Wilke who was driving the medic unit, turned the unit
around 180 degrees and stopped long enough for Mr. Parker to take photograph of the fire using his personal cell phone. 
Once the picture was taken they continued down Independence Parkway another 200-300 yards south and staged to
provide rehab and first aid for incoming fire units. 

Mr. Parker stated that he text the picture of the fire taken while turning around to his partner Ryan Wilke, he denies
sending the picture to anyone else through any media platform or posting the picture on any social media site. When
questioned about the whereabouts of the phone used to take the picture of the fire, Mr. Parker advised that the phone
was damaged beyond repair later the same day.  Mr. Parker describes having the phone in a case on his belt and it
falling to the ground, landing on the screen.  He states that the phones screen is black and will not power up, he has
taken it to Verizon and that they were unable to repair it or retrieve any information from the phone.  Mr. Parker states
that his data is automatically stored into the cloud every night but because the phone was damaged prior to this
automatic back up, the picture in question was not saved into the cloud.  Mr. Parker advised that the 
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cell phone is currently at his residence  and should be in his bedroom closet.  Mr.
Parker stated he had not been advised by any persons prior our interview instructing him to destroy his phone or attempt
to delete any information on said phone.  Mr. Parker stated that on Monday April 1st Ryan Wilke sent the picture in
question to his new phone via text message and that the picture is still on this phone.  This was verified by Investigator
Ledford.

Investigator Ledford Interviewed Ryan Christopher Wilke in the "watch office" located at the above address, this
location allowed for Mr. Wilke to be interviewed privately.  Mr. Wilke has been employed by Deer Park Fire
Department for 4 years and is currently a Paramedic assigned to Station 3 Medic 2.  Mr. Wilke advised that the day of
the incident he was working with Lieutenant/Paramedic William Parker and was at the station at the time of the
incident.  He was made aware of the incident through the department dispatch center and immediately walked outside
the apparatus bay and could see a black plume of smoke coming from the direction of ITC.  Mr. Wilke states he took a
photo of this plume prior to leaving the station and responding to the incident.  Mr. Wilke describes meeting up with
Safety Officer Tommy Archer at Hwy 225 and Battleground Rd.  He describes following Tommy Archer down
Independence and turning around 180 degrees shortly after Tommy Archer did.  While turning around Mr. Wilke
advised he paused the medic unit long enough for Mr. Parker to take a picture of the fire with his cell phone.  He then
dove the medic unit down the road to where the sheriff`s office was beginning to shut the road off.  Mr. Wilke states
him and Mr. Parker provided rehab and first aid for incoming firefighters. Mr. Wilke states he received the picture in
question the same day of the incident and that he sent the picture to his wife via text message.  Mr. Wilke denies
sending the picture to anyone else or posting it on any social media site and that his wife had not posted it on any social
media site.  Mr. Wilke sates he has received several pictures from various people of the incidents at ITC since March
17th 2019, some had been received via text message and others had been received through his Facebook Messenger. 

Investigator Ledford requested a copy of any and all photographs or video Mr. Wilke currently had on his cell phone. 
Mr. Wilke stated was more than willing to provide all the photographs and any video he had on his cell phone
pertaining to the fire at ITC on 3/17/19.   

A series of digital photographs were transferred by Mr. Wilke from his cell phone onto his personal lap top computer. 
The digital information was then transferred to Lieutenant Lopez`s county issued external hard drive and later
transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer
network.
All audio of above interviews were recorded utilizing Lieutenant Lopez`s county issued digital voice recorder.  The
digital information was later transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on
the Harris County computer network.
Mr. Parker and Mr. Wilke were provided Investigator Ledford contact information and advised to call if they obtained
any additional information or had any questions.  

Page 54

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:LEDFORD, J.  (F09171)Investigator: 04/04/2019 18:19:00, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/05/2019 03:35:29, Friday

This concluded the interviews of Mr. William Parker and Mr. Ryan Wilke.

End of Supplement
JDL-95F27
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Tuesday April 2, 2019 at approximately 16:15 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves and Lieutenant Lopez both employed
by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in unincorporated Harris County
in reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with employees of Intercontinental
Terminals Company (ITC).  All interviews were audio recorded and uploaded Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**INTERVIEW OF NELSON DWAIN WAGGONER - P ** 

Nelson Waggoner was interviewed and was on duty at the time of the incident.  He is employed as a switchman and has
been employed for approximately 5-1/2 years.  At the time of the incident he was assigned to the railyard and was in the
rail building with Dave Thomas, known as Beemer, when they could see smoke.  He stated that he had a radio, but it
was on a different channel.  He said that Beemer called him via radio about the fire.  Waggoner is a member of the ERT
and Beemer drove straight to the tank and dropped him off on Tidal Road.  He said that he ran towards the fire and he
saw "Meme" one of the pumpers and they began to open up water valves in an attempt to fight the fire.  He stated that
there were some obstacles in the way, but he stayed at that point and fought the fire.  He said that it was getting hot and
he left to get his bunker gear after hooking up the fire truck to a water supply.  He said he then returned to fight the fire.

I asked if heard or saw anything unusual and he said there was nothing in the tank farm except, rocks, tanks and fire. 
He denied hearing any possible cause, or seeing a video of the fire prior to its growing in size.

**INTERVIEW OF JUAN CAMPOS - P# **

I then interviewed Juan Campos who is a Pumper III, a member of ERT and was on duty at the time of the incident.  He
has been employed with the company for approximately 6 years.  He was acting as the step-up supervisor for Tim
Guidry who was covering for Kevin Young.  The day of the incident he was in charge of all land traffic, which is trucks
and rail cars.  I asked if he remembered any deliveries between the hours of 06:00 and 10:00 hours, and he said that he
did not remember any deliveries.  He said Methanol Cars were being loaded in the 12`s and a U-Base car in the new
rack were being loaded at approximately 10:00 hours.  I asked who handles the trucks and he said that is the Scale
House coordinator and they call him if there are any issues with the trucks.

He said that at approximately 10:00 hours he heard Tim Guidry call out on the radio about a fire in the 80`s.  He was in
the Safety Building at the time he heard the radio traffic and he ran directly to the fire house to get his bunker gear.  He
said he then got on the fire truck with other personnel and they went to the tank farm.  They staged the apparatus on the
Southside of tank 80-15 and started to deploy hand lines.  He said that they also used the monitors on the Southside of
tank 80-9 to put water on the fire.  He said the other firemen tried to get water 
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on the fire from tank 80-15 monitor.

He said the fire was covering the entire manifold which is the mechanicals at the front of the tank.  He said that he
remained fighting the fire until relieved.  I asked if he knew anything about a video about the fire and he said that he did
not.  I asked if he knew of any issues with tank 80-8 and he said that he did not.  He said that all appeared normal and
then the fire happened.

**INTERVIEW OF MATTHEW WAYNE CELANIA - P# *

I then spoke with Matthew Celania who was on duty at the time of the incident.  He is employed as an Operator II and
has been employed for approximately 1-1/2 years.  He was assigned to the Outback, but was in the 100`s helping out
David Zuniga, because he was loading two rail cars with Methanol.  He said that he heard Tim Guidry call out about a
fire and asking all ERT members to report to the 80`s tank farm for a fire.  Celania is not a member of the ERT.  He had
a vehicle and he left Zuniga at the 100`s and drove Chris Bethly who was in the 12`s rack to the fire house.  From the
fire house he went to help out with the fire.  He assisted with hooking up hoses and stayed there to help out with
whatever was needed.  Refer to audio recordings for further details.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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Supplement Report / Follow Up Investigation
Lieutenant T. Hilton 95F8
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On Thursday, April 4, 2019 at approximately 2015 hours ITC employees made entry into the tank farm to drain tank
80-8. I walked in and observed the drone being flown inside the tank farm on the projector screen.  I asked what was
happening and David Wascome stated the team was sent in to drain tank 80-8 and the valve came off. He stated they
had approval from this morning to go inside the tank farm to start draining tank 80-8. He stated the crew would bring
the valve piece to Harris County Sherriff Department or to me (Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office). When I returned a
few minutes later John Everett, ITC, stated the team called and told him they dropped the valve inside the manifold. I
asked what happened and he stated the entry team opened the plug to drain the pipe at the "PIG" and left the 3" pipe
open 3/4". The valve came off as they were opening the drain. The radio traffic data is being recorded into the IAP
software provided by The Response Group.

Entry team:
Nate Stone - ITC
Chris Meeks - ITC
Richard Sullivan - US Pump (Sub-contractor)

Entry time 20:15, removed valve at 20:33, exit 20:37 hours.

End of Supplement
TDH-95F8
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Friday April 5, 2019 at approximately 11:15 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, Investigator Ledford and Lieutenant
Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in
unincorporated Harris County in reference to a follow up for this case.  This follow up was to conduct interviews with
employees of Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC).  At approximately 15:45 hours, we were notified that
personnel were read for their interviews.  All interviews were audio recorded and uploaded Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**INTERVIEW OF NATHAN STONE - Entry Team on 4-4-2018**

I interviewed Nathan Stone who is a BP Pumper and a member of the ERT for ITC.  He has been employed by the
company for 10 years and on the ERT for 9 of those 10 years.  He is also a Step-Up Supervisor for Charlie Fehl.  

Nathan Stone was assigned to do a recon mission on Tank 80-8 on April 4, 2019.  This was to check the level in the
tank and to assess removal of product.  He was assigned to operations and was assisted by Chris Meeks and a
representative with US Fire Pumps named "Dickie".  HE stated that the team of three entered the tank farm and assessed
tank 80-8.  He said that they pulled the bull plug on the PIG trap on tank 80-8.  I asked if he had done this procedure
before and he said that he had not.  This was the first time that he has pulled a bull plug to drain a tank.  He stated that
at the bottom of the PIG trap is a 3" ball valve and that vale was to be operated, however it did not function properly so,
the bull plug was pulled and he observed water, foam and product emit from the tank.  He said that the foam was the
foam used to fight the tank fire and not a piece of foam used as a PIG.  No PIG was found in the line.  He said that he
did the work and that Meeks and "Dickie" were his safeties.  He did say that the product went into the chem drain and
then pumped to the outfall where it is loaded onto trucks and off loaded at tank 100-31 for storage.  He stated that he
was doing what he was told by David Wascome, who is the VP of Operations as well as the assigned night time Incident
Commander.  I asked what the tank level was and he stated that it was approximately 3-1/2` per the thermal image
camera.

**INTERVIEW OF TED LITTLE**

I then interviewed Ted Little who has been with the company for approximately 3-1/2 years.  He is not a member of the
ERT, and is the scale coordinator.  He was on duty at the time of the incident.  He stated that he was in the traffic
building and that between the hours of 6AM and 10AM they had received four trucks.  All of the trucks are weighed
before and after entering the facility.  The weights are captured in the JDE system and the hard copies are kept in the
traffic building.  He said that they scale all sorts of trucks that contain many different products.

At the time of the incident he remembered hearing Shift Supervisor call out that there was a fire.  He recognized the
person as Tim Guidry.  Little stated that he looked out the window saw smoke first then flames later on.  Little 
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stated that he remained in the traffic building and went to the Security office which is located within the same building
to help out the security guard stationed there.  He assisted in making the CIMA callouts and activating the necessary
alerting alarms.  He used to be in charge of security and knowing that the security guard was new would be
overwhelmed very quickly.  He stated that he worked for another company and was familiar with what needed to be
done in a situation like this.  He did state that it was the first incident since he has been employed by ITC.  He said that
once things calmed down in security he went back to his area and remained there.  I asked about the four trucks that
were in the facility and he stated that they had been brought to the traffic building to shelter in place and later they were
allowed to leave in their trucks.

**INTERVIEW OF CHRIS MEEKS - Entry Team on 4-4-2019 - P# **

I then spoke with the second of three members of the team that had been tasked with working on tank 80-8 on April 4,
2019.  He is identified as Chris Meeks.  He has been employed by ITC for approximately 7 years and is the Lead HSE
Specialist within the Safety Division.  I asked what he was tasked to do on the night of April 4, 2019 and he stated that
he was instructed to drain tank 80-8.  He stated that the objective was that they were to get tank readings on tank 80-8,
attempt to open the water draw on tank 80-8 and then exit.  He stated that he got the info second hand from Corey
Guccione as it was in a briefing for what was going to be done for the night.

He stated that he was working with Nate Stone and "Dickie" with US Fire Pumps, Nate and Chris were doing the work
and that Dickie was doing the tank measurements by hand held thermal imager.  There was no water draw at the PIG
trap due to the valve being stuck.  Both he and Nate tried and were unsuccessful.  The valve would not turn.  He said
that they then tried to open the 2" Bull Plug on the PIG trap and that was successful in opening.  He stated that nothing
came out until the 2" valve on the PIG trap was opened to approximately ¾ open.  He said that the PIG trap had a blind
flange as well, and once the valve was opened a mix of product, foam, and water came out.  He said that he did not
remember who thought to use the PIG trap but figured it would work.  He did state that they left with all of the tools
they came in the tank farm with.  Meeks was asked who gave the orders to open the PIG trap, and he said that they
reported the non-operational 3" valve to Ops Chief Jesus Davilla and told him that the valve was not working.  The
crew was told to standby until the Incident Commander could be contacted.  David Wascome was notified of the issue
by Davilla and the approval to use the blind flange and 2" valve was given.  I asked if anything was broken and he
stated that nothing was broken only the Bull Plug was left behind after they removed it so that the tank could be
drained.  He said that if they had broken or damaged anything command would have to be notified immediately.

**INTERVIEW OF RICHARD SULLIVAN - US PUMPS - "DICKIE"

Richard Sullivan with US Pumps was interviewed he was tasked with Vapor Recovery and Suppression.  He stated that
he was working with two ITC personnel Chris and Nate.  He stated that his role was to check the tank levels in and
around tank 80-8 by utilizing a hand held Thermal Imaging Camera also known as FLIR (Forward Looking 
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Infra Red).  He said he was to provide levels as well as temperatures of the liquid within the tank.  He said that the
image is black and white and that it shows the liquid level in the tank.  He said that the color is different than the void
space where there is no liquid.  He said that he did not do any work, only used the camera.  He said that he saw them
working on a valve and that they were using a wrench.  I asked if he could hear what they were saying and he said that
he had an ITC radio as well as a US Fire Pumps radio and he was not paying attention to the ITC radio as much as he
was to the US Fire Pumps radio, because his company was checking on him.  I asked what range they had to stay as a
team and he said they had to stay within 10` to 15`.  He stated that he was involved in the briefing before the operation
occurred.  He said that he did observe the valve being opened on the manifold, but that he was on the man walk and did
not see what work they were doing.  HE did specifically see a pipe wrench being used.  He said that he did not hear
anything about a part or piece breaking, nor did he see them remove anything.  I asked if he took a reading of the tank
while it was draining and he said that they did not, but that it would also not register a drop.  Sullivan was asked if saw
fluid flowing and he said yes that he saw a liquid flowing from the valve.  Sullivan was asked what he was wearing as
safety equipment and he said that he was wearing bunker gear, air pack, full face mask and he stated that he could see
well.  He further said that he was able to maintain visual contact with the team the entire time he was in the tank farm.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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Follow Up Investigation 
Investigator D. Ledford 95F27
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On 04/05/2019 at 14:30 hours Investigator D. Ledford 95F27 toured the Intercontinental Terminals Company
Maintenance Building located at 2621 Title Rd., La Porte, TX 77571 in unincorporated Harris County. This was in
reference to Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office (HCFMO) case number 1903-00046, Intercontinental Terminals
Company (ITC) Fire Incident.

This tour was conducted by ITC supervisor C. Homfeld along with ITC Legal Team.

Investigator Ledford arrived at the ITC Maintenance Building at approximately 14:30 hours and began the tour in the
main "shop" area utilized for building and repairing equipment used in the daily operations of ITC.  The objective of
this tour was to document the work stations, repair process and parts storage within the maintenance building. During
this tour Investigator Ledford also documented three conex boxes near the maintenance building, these boxes were
being used to store equipment utilized throughout the ITC plant, along with other maintenance equipment utilized in the
daily operations of ITC. Documentation was accomplished by Investigator Ledford through a series of photographs. 
These photos were taken using a Canon digital camera with an internal flash.  The images were captured directly to an
internal memory card in the camera and later transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital
Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.  

At approximately 15:30 hours the tour was completed and Investigator Ledford returned to the ITC Command Post.

End of Report JDL/95F27
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On 04/07/19, Lt. Schoonover was assigned day shift 7a-7p at the ITC Command Post.  Lt. Schoonover arrived at the
command post and checked in.  Chief Bolton provided a tour and overview of the facility.  There was severe weather on
this date which caused operations to suspend.  Lt. Schoonover assisted in dropping off equipment at the staging site
located on Independence Parkway.  Lt. Schoonover remained on site until relieved by Investigator Singleton at 19:00. 
Chief Bolton and Chief Royall were on site until approximately 1530.

END OF SUPPLEMENT

SDS - 95F6
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J. Singleton (Unit 95F21)
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigator
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Office # 713.274.1660

On April 4th, 2019, I was contacted by Captain Weston assigning me to recover an original photo taken by a witness on
this case. He let me know that contact information would be coming soon and to keep him updated on the recovery. 
On April 5th, 2019, I received contact information for the witness by Investigator Ledford. I was told he would be
expecting me to contact him April 6th. 
On April 6th, 2019, I made contact with Witness Michael Parker and we agreed to meet at his residence in the next
hour. I traveled to his residence and Pearland and arrived at approximately 6:46 PM. Parker was very cordial and
helpful in the investigation. He stated his phone was in a protective case and fell from his waist height. He did not
immediately find the phone damaged. He attempted to use it a few hours later and realized it would not turn on. The
Verizon employees told him the phone was damaged beyond repair. Parker stated the phone also had battery issues. I
removed the device from the case and observed minor wear and tear damage to the device. It was an iPhone SE A1662.
There was not apparent damage to the screen. I began to suspect a damaged battery or internal LCD. There was a high
probability the phones board and memory was still operational. Parker agreed to let me take the device to the office and
even provided a new battery for the device. 
For the remainder of my shift on April 6th, I was unable to evaluate the device. It remained locked inside a storage
compartment of my county issued vehicle. I am the only person who knows the combination to access the compartment. 
On April 8th, 2019 I was able to examine the device. I replaced the phones battery and temporarily installed a new
LCD. The device powered on without issue and was operational. I used Oxygen Analyst to complete a classic logical
extraction of the phone`s data. The phone`s IMEI is  and running iOS 12.1.4. The screen was not
password protected. The extraction was started at 5:47 PM and finished at 6:59 PM. 
On April 9th, 2019, I reviewed the extracted data. I located several images, videos and messages related to the fire.
Each of these were marked as `key evidence` in the Oxygen Suite. I prepared reports for the lead investigator. The
original photos were extracted from /private/var/mobile/Media/DCIM. I placed a these photos on my network folder for
access by other investigators. A copy will also be placed in the Adams Foray system. The device was saved to an .ofb
(Oxygen Archive) to be sent to the HCFMO property room. 

End of Supplement
JS
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Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Arson Bureau
2318 Atascocita Road Humble, TX 77396
Investigator Jim Hargraves, Jr. - 95F33

SUPPLEMENT:

On Tuesday, April 9, 2019 at approximately 07:00 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, Investigator Ledford and Lieutenant
Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did respond to 1943 Independence Parkway, which is in
unincorporated Harris County.  This was to conduct an origin and cause investigation for the fire that occurred at the
tank farm belonging to Intercontinental Terminals Company, commonly known as ITC on March 17, 2019.  

At approximately 08:00 hours, Chief Reed with the Harris County Fire Marshal`s HAZMAT team conducted a safety
briefing for the operations that were going to occur on site for that day.  Operations teams were assigned to include
representatives from the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Investigation Division, an investigator with the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, and representatives with ITC.  I, Investigator Hargraves was assigned to
Team #1.  Team #1 consisted of the following personnel:

" Investigator Jim Hargraves, Jr. - HCFMO Investigations Division
" Special Agent Eric Evers - BATFE
" HAZMAT Technician Jim Lanphear - HCFMO HAZMAT Division

Team #1 was tasked with conducting the initial scene evaluation and to begin scene photographs.  Prior to making entry
into the tank farm all members of Team #1 were medically evaluated and cleared to make entry at the laydown yard. 
PPE was obtained and Team #1 donned the PPE and prepared for the entry.  Team #1 was taken from the laydown yard
and driven via John Deere Gator`s.

Team #1 made entry in to the tank farm assisted by ITC personnel at 09:47 hours.  ITC personnel monitored air quality
and assisted the team with locating tank 80-8.  HAZMAT Tech Lanphear was also monitoring air quality and was also
videotaping the entry using a GoPro Hero 7.  The GoPro data was automatically stored onto a mini SD card and later
transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer
network.
Upon arrival at tank 80-8 the manifold was observed and photographs of the manifold were taken. The photographs
were taken using a Cannon EOS Rebel T3.  The photographs were automatically stored to an SD card and later
transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer
network.  After observing and documenting was complete, Team #1 exited the tank farm and decontamination was
performed. 
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At 10:11 hours, Team #1 was clear the scene and returned back to the laydown yard to doff the protective gear and brief
the next team on what was needed to document.

Team #1 performed a second entry to continue documentation of the scene and to get pictures of other tanks that had
been damaged by fire as exemplars.  Again, prior to entry into the scene, all members of Team #1 were medically
evaluated and cleared to make entry at the laydown yard. Team #1 was taken from the laydown yard and driven via
John Deere Gator`s.

Team #1 made entry in to the tank farm assisted by ITC personnel at 13:24 hours.  ITC personnel monitored air quality
and assisted the team with locating tanks 80-10 and 80-11.  HAZMAT Tech Lanphear was also monitoring air quality
and was also videotaping the entry using a GoPro Hero 7.  The GoPro data was automatically stored onto a mini SD
card and later transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris
County computer network.

Upon arrival at tank 80-8, the photographs that were started by Team #3 were completed.   The manifold at tank 80-10
was documented by photographs as an exemplar as well as the manifold for 80-11.  All photographs were taken using a
Canon EOS Rebel T3.  The photographs were automatically stored to an SD card and later transferred to the Harris
County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network. 
 
After observing and documenting was complete, Team #1 exited the tank farm and decontamination was performed.  At
13:53 hours, Team #1 was clear the scene and returned back to the laydown yard to doff the protective gear.

After the last entry it was determined that no further operations were needed into the tank farm and that the area was to
be secured around the manifold of tank 80-8.  This request was made and was to be worked on.  The laydown yard was
cleared of all HCFMO equipment and all personnel departed the area and returned to service.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33

On April 9, 2019 at approximately 07:00 hours I, Lieutenant Gustavo Lopez, arrived at 1943 Independence Parkway
and met with Hazmat, Chief Rodney Reed, and ITC personnel to go over the safety briefing in regards to the entries to
be made for the origin and cause investigation.  Team #2 consisted of HCFMO Hazmat Technician Slovarp and me. 
Two ITC personnel also entered and their job was to monitor air also, but not associated with HCFMO.  Slovarp`s
assigned tasks were to monitor the air and record video via the GoPro.  Prior to entry, I was medically evaluated and at
10:38 hours, Team #2 entered the hot zone and went to tank 80-8.  I documented the 
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manifold with a Canon Rebel T-3 digital camera and the pictures are automatically saved on a SD card.  The GoPro was
a Hero-7 4k and video saved on a mini SD.  Team #2 exited the tank farm and deconned at 11:08 hours.  Team #2 then
went to the laydown yard (where Hazmat and all the equipment located) to get medical evaluation and rehab.  Other
duties besides our entry consisted of  assising other teams in donning and doffing hazmat suits and providing rehab. 
After operations were completed for the day, I went to 2322 Atascocita to submit the pictures and videos into Foray.  

End of supplement……………………………………………………….

Page 67

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



 

 

 

 

 

Supplement 

April 9, 2019 

Second 80s Tank Farm Examination 

Investigator Ledford 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow Up Supplement

Date / Time:LEDFORD, J.  (F09171)Investigator: 04/09/2019 07:45:23, Tuesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/15/2019 14:51:37, Monday

Follow Up Investigation 
Investigator D. Ledford 95F27
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On 04/09/2019 at 07:45 hours Investigator D. Ledford 95F27 arrived at 1943 Independence Pkwy., La Porte, TX 77571
in unincorporated Harris County.  The site is referred to as the "laydown yard" by ITC employees and is near the 80`s
tank farm.  This was in reference to Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office (HCFMO) case number 1903-00046,
Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC) Fire Incident. 

This location was being utilized as the command post/staging area for HCFMO Hazmat operation/investigations making
entry into tank farm 80.  Chief R. Reed 953 with Harris County Fire Marshal`s was command of Hazmat operations and
Lieutenant G. Lopez 95F7 was command of Investigation operations.
 
Investigator Ledford assisted with setting up the staging area for HCFMO personnel and the donning of personal
protective clothing as HCFMO team members prepared to enter the hot zone.  

At 11:38 hours Investigator Ledford was cleared through medical and at 12:05 donned personal protective gear.  At
12:37 hours Investigator Ledford along with HCFMO Hazmat Technician 
S. Devries 95H14, and I.T.C. representatives entered tank farm 80.  A series of digital photographs were taken by
Investigator Ledford documenting the exterior of tank 80-8 from all sides showing a true 360 degree representation of
tank 80-8.  These photos were taken in a clockwise fashion starting at tank 80-8`s manifold.  Photos were taken using a
Canon digital camera with an internal flash.  The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the
camera and later transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris
County computer network.  The task of photographing the exterior of tank 80-8 was documented by HCFMO Hazmat
Technician S. Devries 95H14 utilizing a GoPro Black Hero, 4K.  The digital information was saved directly to an
internal mini memory card in the GoPro video camera.  This information was later transferred to the Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.  
Once photographs of tank 80-8`s exterior had been completed, Investigator Ledford placed scene tape around the
perimeter of tank 80-8`s manifold, this tape was secured at one end of the manifold to itself around the pig trap,
deployed around the exterior perimeter of the manifold and secured to itself around the metal staircase attached to the
exterior of tank 80-8 on the opposite side of the manifold from the pig trap.  This was documented by HCFMO Hazmat
Technician S. Devries 95H14 utilizing a GoPro Black Hero, 4K.  The digital information was saved directly to an
internal mini memory card in the video camera.  This information was later transferred to the Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.  
Investigator Ledford then began a series of digital photographs documenting the surrounding area around tank 80-8
working in a clockwise fashion staring at the manifold on tank 80-8.  Investigator Ledford was unable to complete the
360 degree documentation due to running out of time allowed to be inside the hot zone per hazmat command.  
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A blue flag on a wire was secured to the exterior piping of 80-8 on the opposite side from the manifold, this was used to
mark the area of his last photograph for returning HCFMO investigators.  Investigator Ledford, Hazmat Tech S. Devries
and ITC representatives exited the 80`s tank farm through the designated decontamination area, returned to the HCFMO
command/staging area and reported to medical officer for clearance.  Photos were taken using a Canon digital camera
with an internal flash.  The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the camera and later transferred
to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network. The
task of photographing surround area around tank 80-8 was documented by HCFMO Hazmat Technician S. Devries
95H14 utilizing a GoPro Black Hero, 4K.  The digital information was saved directly to an internal mini memory card
in the video camera.  This information was later transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital
Evidence System on the Harris County computer network. 
Investigator Ledford assisted with demobilization of HCFMO Hazmat command/staging area and began site security of
the "laydown yard" entrance per orders from HCFMO Captain M. Weston 95F1.  Investigator Ledford remained at this
post until relieved by Precinct 8 Constable Kelly Divine at 1600 hours.  Investigator Ledford cleared the scene and
returned to service.
 
End of Report JDL/95F27 
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SUPPLEMENT:

On Tuesday, April 9, 2019 at approximately 12:00 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves employed by the Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office while out at 1943 Independence Parkway, which is in unincorporated Harris County was approached
by Chief James Bolton also with the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office about a deputy having video of the fire that
occurred on March 17, 2019.  The video was contained on a WD My Passport 1TB portable hard drive.  I was provided
the portable drive by E.W. Robinson (81H73) who is employed by the Harris County Sheriff`s Office in the SMAG
Unit.  I thanked him for the hard drive and I was instructed to place the item into evidence.

The portable drive was secured and later placed into evidence locker 1 in the Evidence Building located at 2322
Atascocita Road, which is in Humble, Harris County, Texas.

--EOR--
JOH 95F33
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 04/10/2019 07:00:00, Wednesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/15/2019 14:47:18, Monday

SUPPLEMENT:

On Wednesday, April 10, 2019 at approximately 07:00 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, along with Investigator Ledford
and Lieutenant Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office as well as ATF Agent Evers arrived at
1030 Ethyl Road, which is in Pasadena, unincorporated Harris County Texas, to conduct a site visit of the maintenance
building belonging to Intercontinental Terminals Company.

At approximately 09:26 hours, the above group accompanied by Russell Lewis and Kelly Hanen arrived at the
maintenance building and met with Carlton "Spud" Holmfeld, the maintenance manager, and mechanics Larry Kitchens
and Josh Wilson.  We asked to be shown and have explained the repair process.  We were shown several items of
machinery and the repair process was explained as well as parts used to make the necessary repairs.  The items in the
maintenance building were photographed as well as where the spare parts were located.  Russell Lewis had to return to
the main building in Pasadena, but Kelly Hanen remained with investigators and representatives of ITC until the site
visit was complete.  The motor used to drive the shaft was asked about and we were taken to an outdoor storage area
that was covered by a tent that was open on both ends and exposed to the elements.  The motors were then
photographed including the data plates that were visible.  After viewing the motors we all returned to the maintenance
building and observed some pump and motor assemblies that were assembled.  These were photographed as exemplars
and the parts were explained by Homfeld and how they operate.  After viewing the repair process, where the parts are
stored and the storage area outside, the group departed the maintenance building and returned to 1030 Ethyl Road to
drop off Kelly Hanen.  At approximately 11:15 hours, Investigator Hargraves, Investigator Ledford, Lieutenant Lopez
and Special Agent Evers and Kelly Hanen arrived back at 1030 Ethyl Road without incident and departed the location.

The digital photographs that show a true representation of the scene as viewed by Investigator Hargraves on Wednesday
April 10, 2019 and were taken by Investigator Ledford using a Canon EOS Rebel digital camera with an internal flash.
The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the camera and transferred to the Harris County Fire
Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

--EOR--
JOH 95F33

Page 71

Investigator Signature Supervisor Signature



 

 

 

 

 

Supplement 

April 10, 2019 

Examination of 2621 Tidal Rd. maintenance 

building by Investigator Ledford 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OCA: 190300046

CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT
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THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow Up Supplement

Date / Time:LEDFORD, J.  (F09171)Investigator: 04/10/2019 09:30:01, Wednesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/16/2019 11:43:58, Tuesday

Follow Up Investigation 
Investigator D. Ledford 95F27
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On 04/10/2019 at 09:30 hours Investigator D. Ledford 95F27 toured the Intercontinental Terminals Company
Maintenance Building located at 2621 Title Rd., La Porte, TX 77571 in unincorporated Harris County. This was in
reference to Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office (HCFMO) case number 1903-00046, Intercontinental Terminals
Company (ITC) Fire Incident.

This tour was conducted by ITC supervisor C. Homfeld along with ITC employee L. Kitchens, J. Wilson and legal
representative K. Hanen.

HCFMO Investigators J. Hargraves and Lt. G. Lopez along with A.T.F. Agent Evers were also in attendance.

Investigator Ledford along with all parties listed above arrived at the ITC Maintenance Building at approximately 09:40
hours and began the tour in the main "shop" area utilized for building and repairing equipment used in the daily
operations of ITC.  The objective of this tour was to document the work stations, repair process and parts storage within
the maintenance building. During this tour Investigator Ledford also documented an outside storage area behind three
conex boxes near the maintenance building, this area was being used to store equipment utilized throughout the ITC
plant, along with other maintenance equipment utilized in the daily operations of ITC. Documentation was
accomplished by Investigator Ledford through a series of photographs.  These photos were taken using a Canon digital
camera with an internal flash.  The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the camera and later
transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer
network.  

At approximately 10:55 hours the tour was completed and Investigator Ledford, Hargraves, Lopez and Agent Evers
returned to the ITC Command Post.

End of Report JDL/95F27
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 04/10/2019 16:00:00, Wednesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/15/2019 14:50:50, Monday

SUPPLEMENT:

On Wednesday, April 10, 2019 at approximately 16:00 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, along with Investigator Ledford
and Lieutenant Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did review documentation received from
Intercontinental Terminals Company, or ITC in regards to the fire that occurred on March 17, 2019.  This review was
conducted at the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office located at 2318 Atascocita Road, Humble, Texas.

The document reviewed was labeled "ITC_HCFM_613".  This data was collected by the computer system maintained
and owned by ITC.  It was supplied as requested by subpoena by the law firm Baker Botts who is a firm representing
ITC.  The data for the tank starts on March 10, 2019 at approximately 00:00 hours, or Midnight and runs to March 22,
2019 to approximately 00:05.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:SINGLETON, J.  (F09130)Investigator: 04/11/2019 07:32:53, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/11/2019 09:44:31, Thursday

On April 11th, 2019, at approximately 7:33 AM, I met with Deer Park Paramedic Michael Parker at his fire station at
2211 E X St. I provided him with his iPhone SE and old phone battery. He accepted the device and thanked our office.
He was happy to help. I made suggestions for him to retrieve the photos from the device through iCloud backup. 

End of Supplement
JS
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow Up Supplement

Date / Time:LEDFORD, J.  (F09171)Investigator: 04/11/2019 09:54:46, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/16/2019 11:45:07, Tuesday

Follow Up Investigation 
Investigator D. Ledford 95F27
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On 04/11/2019 at 09:54 hours Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Investigators D. Ledford 95F27, J. Hargraves 95F33
and Lt. G. Lopez 95F7 toured the ITT PRO facility located at 12510 Sugar Ridge, Stafford, TX 77477 in unincorporated
Harris County. This was in reference to Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office (HCFMO) case number 1903-00046,
Intercontinental Terminals Company (ITC) Fire Incident.

Investigators arrived at the ITT PRO facility at approximately 09:45 hours. The focus of the tour was the main "shop"
area utilized for building and repairing pumps, valves and monitoring/control equipment for plant optimization and
efficiency systems.  The objective of this tour was to document Gould pumps and there capabilities. Documentation was
accomplished by Investigator Ledford through a series of photographs.  These photos were taken using a Canon digital
camera with an internal flash.  The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the camera and later
transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer
network.  

At approximately 11:35 hours the tour was completed and Investigator Ledford, Hargraves, and Lopez returned to
service.

End of Report JDL/95F27
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CASE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office

THE INFORMATION BELOW IS CONFIDENTIAL - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY

Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 04/11/2019 15:38:00, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/15/2019 14:49:31, Monday

SUPPLEMENT:

On Thursday, April 11, 2019 at approximately 15:38 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, along with Investigator Ledford
and Lieutenant Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office arrived at 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in
Pasadena, unincorporated Harris County Texas, to conduct interviews at Intercontinental Terminals Company, or ITC. 
It should be noted that the interviews were recorded and later uploaded to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.

**INTERVIEW OF JOHN BALL - P# *

At approximately 15:38 hours I, along with Investigator Ledford, Lieutenant Lopez and Mike Strike with Phelps
Dunbar interviewed John Ball.  Ball is employed as a millwright and has been with ITC for approximately 10 years.  He
stated that he remembered working on the pump for tank 80-8 and that he found that it was making a noise.  He said that
to him it sounded like a bearing going out.  Ball was asked if a seal went out if it would make the same noise as a
bearing and he said no.  He said that if the bearings are going out, it makes a vibration that you can feel.  I asked if it
was common to change bearings or pumps out frequently and he said that he stays busy, but could not say if that
specific pump was troublesome or not.

I asked if he was tasked with rebuilding a pump if he completed it himself or did he let other people complete his work
and he said that if he starts it, he finished it.  I asked that when he completed a pump rebuild if there was a tag or was it
preserved in any way to mark it as being rebuilt and he said that he sometimes tags a completed rebuild, but there is not
a procedure in place to do it.  I asked how he inspects the pump to see if it is bad or not and he said that he can turn the
shaft and if it turns, it is good and if it doesn`t turn it is bad.  He said that usually when a pump is bad, they remove it
from service and place the spare in service and the bad one is then rebuilt to become a spare.  He said the pump is
completely gone through and those parts that can be reused are, and those that cannot be reused are replaced with new
parts.  I asked if he remembered where he got the spare from 80-8 to replace the bad pump came from and he said that
he could not remember where he got it.

Ball was asked how he got the order to change out the pump and he said that he received the work order from Larry
Kitchens on December 4, 2018.  He said that he got with Operations and got on the LOTO, which is a lock out, tag out. 
He said that the pump was making a noise and that he was assisted by two other millwrights Anders and Robles.  It
should be noted that Anders and Robles have been previously interviewed.  He said that he, Anders, and Robles went
out to the tank 80-8 at approximately 14:30-15:00 hours and found that the LOTO was not complete and Ball stated that
he said for Operations to call him when they were ready and they left.  He said that they returned at approximately
17:30-18:00 hours and started the process of removing the pump.  He said that the pump was removed and taken to the
shop.  He then said that the spare came out of the Conex box and the spare was taken to 80-8 and put everything back
together.  He said that they then set clearances used the crane to set it in place.  He said that they then aligned the pump
and again checked clearances.  He said that the seal pot was then filled and 
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Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 04/11/2019 15:38:00, Thursday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/15/2019 14:49:31, Monday

they got off of the LOTO and left the tank farm.

The lighting was called into question and he stated that the area lights were sufficient to illuminate the work area and
that they did not have any supplemental light to complete their tasks.  I asked how he comes to know that a pump needs
work and stated that all of the requests come through the work orders.  He said that usually the work order will stated
that the pump is making a noise and that the millwright then goes to investigate the noise to isolate what the issue is. 
He said that on December 4, 2018 he went to check the noise and through his investigation he felt a vibration which is
indicative of a bearing going out.  He said that the vibration check is done by feel.

I asked what the seal pot was filled with and he said that it is filled with Glycol and water.  I asked about the seal
housing that is used to seal the pump and he said that part they do not repair.  They remove a new one from the box and
replace it with the bad unit and send it back to the vendor to be repaired.  I asked if the ports for the coolant are marked
on the seal housing and he said that they are marked in and out.  He said the reason that part is replaced is that it has to
be removed to rebuild the "power end" of the pump.  He said that once it is replaced, the nuts are tightened in a "X"
pattern to ensure an even crush on the gasket.  I asked about the studs that are used to guide the seal housing as well as
secure it to the pump if there was any protrusion above the nut and he said no, that they are usually flush.  I asked if new
studs are put in when the seal housing is changed and he said no, they are left in the pump and reused.  He said to the
best of his knowledge the nuts are stainless steel as well as the flat washers, but he did not know if the studs were or not.

**INTERVIEW OF GABRIEL RAMIREZ - P# **

At approximately 16:26, I, Investigator Hargraves interviewed Gabriel Ramirez along with Lieutenant Lopez,
Investigator Ledford, and Mike Strike with Phelps Dunbar.  Gabriel Ramirez is employed by ITC as a Maintenance
Electrician.  HE has been with the company for a year and seven months.  He has been an electrician for 8 years and is
an Apprentice Electrician. He stated that he is working toward getting his State license.

He said that his job is to review work orders and perform the tasks as assigned.  He said that work comes from his
supervisor, Travis Williams.  He said that they all get their orders in the morning and everyone gets to work on a little
bit of everything within the facility.  I asked if he has experience working with 3-Phase power and assemblies and he
stated that he did.
The work Order for May 17, 2018 was reviewed and on that document it stated issues with grounding within the 80`s
tank farm.  He stated that they checked the tanks and replaced wiring and ground rods as needed.  I asked what would
indicate a bad reading and he stated anything over 15 ohms would be bad and anything 15 and under would be a good
reading.  On the work order it said that some tanks were still giving bad reads, and he said that meant that they were still
working on that issue and did not complete the full task that day.

The next work order reviewed was for March 21, 2018 and it read that the cathodic labels were worked on.  He 
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said that was due to an audit of the facility and that they were tasked with making sure that all cathodic boxes were
labeled.  I asked what was in a cathodic box and he said that was the grounding for the tank.  He said that within the box
is a cooper bar where the lugs are attached.

The next work order reviewed was for December 16, 2018 and was for the motors on 80-8 and 80-10 not starting. 
Ramirez said that these two motors were fed from the same breaker.  I asked what a cut-out was and he said that it is a
fuse.  He said that there are three cut-outs that have to be removed in order to reset the breaker.  He said that they will
then test the motors by starting and then stopping them in the field and then remotely starting and stopping from the
CCR.  He stated that the motor voltage is checked on the "LINE" side.  He then said that they usually stay with the
motor to make sure that everything is working correctly.  I then asked what "MEG" meant and he said that it was an
insulation tester and he said that the cables and motor are checked and that is what is meant by "MEGGING".

I asked if he knew the amperage rating for the cut-outs and he said that he did not.  He said that when they are dialed up
that the limits were turned up and asked what that meant.  He said that it is due to multiple motors being run on ne
breaker.  He said that the limits are dialed up in order to stop the breaker from tripping, but it will not exceed the
maximum allowable amperage or temperature that the breaker is rated for.  He further explained if the cut-out is rated
for 1000A, it will not exceed 1000A.  He further stated that when it is hot outside, that they get more tripped breakers
than when it is cool.  He said that was due to the breaker having an amperage rating as well as a temperature rating and
if either is met the breaker will trip.

It should be noted that at approximately 16:52 hours the recorder was found to be inoperable due to a dead battery. 
Approximately 13 minutes of the 26 minute interview were captured.  Batteries were replaced and the recorder was
found to be functioning properly.

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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Case Status: ACTIVE Case Mng Status: ACTIVE

Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:HARGRAVES, J.  (F09168)Investigator: 04/12/2019 07:12:00, Friday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 04/15/2019 14:50:27, Monday

SUPPLEMENT:

On Friday, April 12, 2019 at approximately 07:12 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves, along with Investigator Ledford and
Lieutenant Lopez all employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office arrived at 1030 Ethyl Road, which is in
Pasadena, unincorporated Harris County Texas, to conduct interviews at Intercontinental Terminals Company, or ITC. 
It should be noted that the interviews were recorded and later uploaded to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County computer network.  Kent Afton with Baker Botts, LLC was also in
the room while the interview was conducted.  Baker Botts, LLC is one of the firms representing the company.

**INTERVIEW OF JAMES HICKEY - P# **

At approximately 07:12 hours, James Hickey was the last of the interviews conducted at ITC.  He is employed by ITC
as a maintenance electrician and has been with the company for approximately 3 years.  He is a Journeyman electrician
and is State licensed.  He also holds an industrial certification through NCCR. 

The work order bearing his name dated December 12, 2018 was reviewed and was discussed with him.  This is the order
that says the breaker was dialed up to the maximum.  He stated that the breaker has numbers on it and when dialed up it
is the maximum that it can be turned to.  He said this is done for the end rush meaning the spike in amperage that occurs
when the motor is started.  He said that is why the breakers are turned up to offset the end rush.  He said that on a
1200A breaker the end rush could be up to 2000A, but that the breaker only sees it for a moment and then the load
stabilizes.  He said that he could not say what the breaker was set too, because he did not know what the maximum end
rush would be.

The next work order that was reviewed was one dated November 12, 2018 and this one said that something was wound
too tight.  He stated that statement came from an operator and that he did not know what was meant by that statement
either.  He said that he remembered that the pump and motor on tank 80-8 ran loud, but that it was nothing that sounded
out of the ordinary.  He also said that some of the motors have a Variable Frequency Drive installed, that allow a soft
start and stop, but the motor on tank 80-8 had a starter and that meant it was an instant on.  He said that when they are
called out they test on the motors and if no issues are found they call the millwrights to check the mechanicals of the
pump.  He said that nothing sounded out of the ordinary to him or the millwrights.

The next work order that was reviewed was one dated July 4, 2018 and it was for a breaker issue.  He said that there had
been a new install performed and that if you attempt to run all of the pumps at the same time it will cause the breaker to
trip.  He also said that temperature is a factor as well.  He said that during the summer months they receive more calls
for tripped breakers than when the temperatures are cooler.

The next order that was reviewed was dated December 16, 2018 and this was reporting an issue with breakers 
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tripping.  He stated that they pulled the cut-outs and reset the breakers and it held.  He said that the issue was during the
night with one pumper and that they had resolved the issue with them trying to start too many pumps at one time.  I
asked about the settings on the breaker and he said that they are setting for temperature and time.  He said the max
temperature is set due to the warm weather and that the time is set to max to allow for more end rush before the breaker
trips.

He said that the reason for them setting the time and temperature settings to the maximum is that it is difficult to get to
the breakers to reset them.  He said that they are directly above a pipe rack and right above the transformer bank is the
main supply line which is rated at 7000V.  He said with the difficulty in getting to the breakers, they are set to the max,
and it is a guess sometimes, because they cannot measure the end rush due to the proximity of the 7000V line.  I asked
about the new install mentioned earlier and he said that Daycon had done a new install on the breakers in August of
2018.  He said that shortly after the new install, the issues with the breakers tripping started to occur.

I asked about why the start /stop stations were being moved and he said that it was due to a safety issue that Exxon had. 
The company decided to follow the same procedures by moving the start/stop stations away from the manifolds so that
if a hazard was found the operator was away from the hazard area and could safely shut down the process.  

--EOR--
JOH 95F33
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Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up

Date / Time:WESTON, M.  (F09040)Investigator: 05/14/2019 13:45:54, Tuesday

Supervisor Review Date / Time:HILTON, T.  (F09136)Supervisor: 05/15/2019 10:28:44, Wednesday

On Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 11:52 hours Captain M. Weston received an E-Notify notification of small fire that
occured in the 80`s tank farm at ITC Deer Park 1943 Independence Parkway.  The fire was reported to have occured
during demolition of the tanks that were involved in the fire that initiated on March 17, 2019.  Lt. T. Hilton and Captain
Weston responded to the location of the 80`s tank farm ITC Deer Park.  Upon arrival Lt. Hilton met with ITC Sr. VP
Brent Weber.  Weber stated that a fire occured in tank 80-15 during the demoliton process.

Lt. Hilton identified and interviewed heavy equiment operator Steven Childers.  Mr. Childers stated that he was using a
track hoe to demolish the remains of tank 80-15 when the residual product in the tank ignited.  Mr. Childers stated that
the stand by fire suppression team (US Fire Pumps and ITC ERT) quickly extinguished the flash fire within minutes. 

Mr. Childers works for HazMat Special Services.

Lt. Hilton took a series of digital still images from the exterior of tank farm 80`s as part of the documentation process. 
The images will be uploaded to the Foray image management system. 

end MRW / 95F1
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Printed: 11/20/2019  13:43

Offense: FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

Occurred: 03/17/2019

Reference:Contact: Follow-up
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Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Arson Bureau
2318 Atascocita Road Humble, TX 77396
Investigator Jim Hargraves, Jr. - 95F33

SUPPLEMENT:

On Tuesday, September 10, 2019 at approximately 08:30 hours, I, Investigator Hargraves along with Chief Weston,
both employed by the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office did take photographs of items retrieved from the ITC tank
farm from Tank 80-8.  A series of digital photographs that show a true representation of the items as viewed by
Investigator Hargraves on Tuesday, September 10, 2019 and was taken by Investigator Hargraves using a Canon EOS
Rebel digital camera with an internal flash. The images were captured directly to an internal memory card in the camera
and transferred to the Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office Foray Digital Evidence System on the Harris County
computer network.  A list of items retrieved was obtained from Cody Robinson with Stress Engineering Services and
has been added to this supplement.

A list of those present is as follows:
Cody Robinson - SES - P# 281.955.2900 - cody.robinson@stress.com
Dan McCall - ITT - P#  - daniel.mccall@itt.com
Jim Hargraves, Jr. - HCFMO - P# - jim.hargraves@fmo.hctx.net
Mitchell Weston - HCFMO - P#  - mitch.weston@fmo.hctx.net
Ben Gonsoulin - Baker Botts - P#  - ben.gonsoulin@bakerbotts.com

--EOR-
JOH 95F33
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Canine Report 
 



Agency Name

ORI

OCA/CAD #

Incident Type

Incident DateIncident Location

Call Out Time Arrival Time Deploy Time Clear Time Time Spent Weather

ACTIVITY TYPE CNT LOC TYPE OUTCOME SUBSTANCE FOUND AMOUNT UNIT VALUE

Officer Name (ID #) / Canine Officer Signature Supervisor Signature

Date/Time Submitted

Evaluation Type

Case Status
Further Investigation
Inactive
Closed / Cleared
Closed / Leads Exhausted

Case Disposition
Unfounded
Cleared By Arrest
Cleared By Arrest by Another Agency
Death of Offender

Juvenile / No Custody Extradition Declined
Refuse to Cooperate
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Location of Canine Activity

HARRIS COUNTY FIRE MARSHAL`S

TX  1015600

1903-00046

FIRE (UNDETERMINED)

0.02   Hours

14 - SEARCH - ACCELERANTS

CALLOUT
CANINE REPORT

Supplement Report K9 Deployment
K9 Handler/Investigator E. Tessier 95K1
Harris County Fire Marshal`s Office
Fire/Arson/Explosion Investigations

On March 18, 2019 at 1039 hours I received a phone call from Cypress Creek Emergency 
Communications in regards to an industrial chemical facility fire investigation located
 at 1943 Independence Parkway South in unincorporated Harris County, Texas. I contacted
 Investigator D. Lee by cell phone who advised me that the fire occurred in a chemical 
storage tank. Investigator Lee stated the fire was still burning.

I advised Investigator Lee the canine team would not be responding to the scene due to 
the fact the fire was still burning.

End of Supplement

TESSIER, E. (F09090)  /  DELTA

03/18/2019 10:40

03/17/2019 12:481943 INDEPENDENCE PKWY, LA PORTE, TX  77571
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12:48
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1943 INDEPENDENCE PKWY, LA PORTE  77571



 

 

  

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 
Firearms and Explosives 

Case Number 782035-19-0029 

































































































































 

The information contained in this case file is a working copy and 
summary of the documentation compiled during the investigative 
process. The original and complete investigation file is located in a 
master file storage at the HCFMO offices. Should you require 
additional information on this case file please contact me. 

Contact Information 

J.O. Hargraves Jr. 
Investigator, Investigations, 95F33 

 
Office: (713) 274-1718 

E-Mail: jim.hargraves@fmo.hctx.net 
 

Harris County Fire Marshal’s Office 
2318 Atascocita Road 

Humble, TX 77396 

mailto:jim.hargraves@fmo.hctx.net



